@ summit

II.

II1.

Iv.

VL

SUMMIT COUNTY DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES BOARD

ANNUAL ORGANIZATIONAL MEETING AND
COMBINED WORK SESSION/REGULAR MONTHLY MEETING

AGENDA,

Thursday, January 24, 2019
Administrative Board Room
5:30 p.m.

ANNUAL ORGANIZATIONAL MEETING

CALL TO ORDER - 2018 ORGANIZATIONAL MEETING

ELECTION OF OFFICERS

A. PROPOSED: PRESIDENT
VICE PRESIDENT
SECRETARY

B. ELECTION OF OFFICERS

ETHICS COMMITTEE

ASSIGNMENT OF BOARD MEMBERS TO SUPERINTENDENT COMMITTEES

A. PROPOSED: FINANCE & FACILITIES COMMITTEE
HR/LR COMMITTEE
SERVICES & SUPPORTS COMMITTEE

BOARD MEMBER DECLARATIONS AND CODE OF ETHICS AND CONDUCT

ADJOURN ORGANIZATIONAL MEETING

Page 1 of 3



A/ N
(&V} Summ1t Page 2 of 3
WORK SESSION

DISCUSSION ONLY ITEMS
L. FUTURE FACILITIES PLANNING UPDATE

ACTION ITEMS FOR BOARD CONSIDERATION DISCUSSED PREVIOUSLY
II.  SUMMIT 2020 QUALITY OF LIFE PROJECT CONTRACT

II.  SUMMIT COUNTY FAMILY & CHILDREN FIRST COUNCIL CONTRACT — SHARED FUNDING
POOL

NEW ACTION ITEMS FOR BOARD CONSIDERATION
IV.  DECEMBER FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

V. DISPOSAL OF VEHICLES

VL. OHIO ASSOCIATION OF COUNTY BOARDS OF DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES (OACB)
2019 MEMBERSHIP DUES

VII. DIRECT SERVICE CONTRACT



N

II.

II1.

IV.

VI

VII.

VIIL.

IX.

( summit

BOARD MEETING

CALL TO ORDER

CAUCUS - BOARD MEMBERS: ADDITIONAL AGENDA ITEMS
CAUCUS - SUPERINTENDENT

PUBLIC COMMENT

APPROVAL OF MINUTES
A. DECEMBER 11, 2018 (combined Work Session/Regular Meeting)

BOARD ACTION ITEMS
A. FINANCE & FACILITIES COMMITTEE
1. SUMMIT 2020 QUALITY OF LIFE PROJECT CONTRACT

2. SUMMIT COUNTY FAMILY & CHILDREN FIRST COUNCIL CONTRACT —
SHARED FUNDING POOL

3. DECEMBER FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
4. DISPOSAL OF VEHICLES

B. OTHER

1. OHIO ASSOCIATION OF COUNTY BOARDS OF DEVELOPMENTAL
DISABILITIES (OACB) 2019 MEMBERSHIP DUES

C. ETHICS COMMITTEE
1. DIRECT SERVICE CONTRACT

SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT
A. 2019 BOARD MEMBER IN-SERVICE SCHEDULE

PRESIDENT'S COMMENTS

ADJOURN



Attachment #1
Summit County Developmental Disabilities Board

TOPIC SUMMARY REPORT
TOPIC ISSUE/CONCERN RECOMMENDATION

Inter-governmental Collaboration between Summit The Board renew its funding support
Agreement for the County Department of Job and for two years for Summit 2020 Project
Summit 2020 Quality | Family Services (SCDJFS) and from January 1, 2019 through
of Life Project nonprofit health and social December 31, 2020, for a total amount

services providers to serve the not to exceed $65,000.

most vulnerable citizens of Summit

County

SUPPORTING DATA FOR RECOMMENDATION

This contract is managed by Summit County Combined General Health District with SCDIJFS,
Summit DD, Summit County ADM Board and Summit County Children’s Services, sharing equally in
the cost of the Agreement. This Agreement has been in operation since 2002 and has focused on
these primary indicators and initiatives:

1. Economic stability and prosperity

2. Early childhood

3. Older adults

4. Health and health disparities

5. Government efficiencies and effectiveness

Project goals include:
¢ Collecting data for 22 indicators to measure the quality of health and social services in Summit

County

» Developing plans and goals to improve the quality of services as measured by these 22
indicators

* Implementing plans to strengthen public health and social service infrastructure
Strengthening collaborations between public health and social service providers and systems

It will be a priority of the directors of the three levy funded agencies (SCDD, ADM, SCCSB) to
integrate more agency priorities into the Summit 2020 Plan and to assure that the Plan reflects more
initiatives of those agencies.

Summit 2020 is a priority of County Executive llene Shapiro with oversight of the project delegated to
the Social Services Advisory Board (SSAB).

Funds are available in the budget to cover the Board’s share of this contract.

Recommended for approval by the December Finance & Facilities Committee.

Submitted By: _John Trunk For: Superintendent/Assistant Superintendent
X__ Finance & Facilities Committee
Date: _ December 2018 Services & Supports Committee

HR/LR Committee




Summit County Department of Job and F amily Services
1180 South Main Street, Suite 102
Akron, Ohio 44301

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT FOR
SUMMIT 2020 QUALITY OF LIFE PROJECT

Summit County Combined General Health District
Summit County Children Services
County of Summit Board of Developmental Disabilities

County of Summit Alcohol, Drug Addiction and Mental
Health Services Board

Effective Date: January 1, 2019 — December 31, 2020
Total Agreement Amount: $260,000.00

Agreement Amount for Each Party (excluding SCPH): $65,000.00



Intergovernmental Agreement
Between

County of Summit, through the County of Summit Department of Job and Family Services
Summit County Combined General Health District
Summit County Children Services
County of Summit Board of Developmental Disabilities
County of Summit Alcohol, Drug Addiction and Mental Health Services Board

Summit 2020 Quality of Life Project

This Intergovernmental Agreement (“Agreement”) is entered into this __ day of
, 2018, by and between the County of Summit through the County of Summit
Department of Job and Family Services (“County”), 175 S. Main St., Akron, OH 44308,
Summit County Combined General Health District (“Health District”), 1867 W. Market St.,
Akron, OH 44313, Summit County Children Services Board (SCCS”), 264 S. Arlington St.,
Akron, OH 44306, County of Summit Board of Developmental Disabilities (“DD Board”), 89
E. Howe Road, Tallmadge, OH 44278 and County of Summit Alcohol, Drug Addiction and
Mental Health Services Board ("ADM”), 1867 W. Market St. Ste. B2, Akron, OH 44313,

Whereas, from 2002 to 2010, the Summit County Social Services Advisory Board
(“SSAB”) has operated the Summit 2010 Quality of Life Project, with the aim of building
collaboration between hundreds of public and nonprofit health and social service providers to
assure that the needs of the most vulnerable citizens of Summit County are addressed consistently,

professionally and effectively; and

Whereas, from 2002 to 2010, the Summit 2010 Quality of Life Project collected data for
20 indicators of health and social service quality in Summit County, developed plans and goals to
improve these 20 indicators, implemented those plans to strengthen the public health and social
service infrastructure and formed collaborations between the major public health and social
services providers and systems in order to increase the effectiveness of services they deliver; and

Whereas, from 2002 to 2010, the County first hired a consultant to manage the 2010
Quality of Life Project, with each party to this Agreement sharing in the cost of said consultant,
and the Health District subsequently assumed the responsibility for managing the project in 2009

and 2010; and

Whereas, as the manager of the Summit 2010 Quality of Life Project, the Health
Department is compensated by the other parties to this Agreement, and also contributes in-kind

services to the project; and

Whereas, the parties have determined that the Summit 2010 Quality of Life Project is
beneficial to the major objectives of each party, assists each party in improving services to and



1]

quality of life of the parties’ respective clientele and addresses the health, social and quality of life
issues facing Summit County; and

Whereas, the parties have determined that it is beneficial to each of them and the County
as a whole to continue the Summit 2010 Quality of Life Project for the next decade and to rename

the project the Summit 2020 Quality of Life Project; and

Whereas, the accomplishments of the Summit 2020 Quality of Life Project from 2017 to
2018 are attached hereto as Attachment E and

Whereas, the Health District desires to continue to manage, and the other parties desire the
Health District to continue to manage, the Summit 2020 Quality of Life Project, pursuant to the
Scope of Work attached hereto as Attachment C; and

Whereas, the primary objective of the 2020 Quality of Life Project will be to develop and
implement initiatives in five main areas to improve public health and social service delivery: (i)
Economic Stability and Prosperity, (i) Early Childhood (First Things First), (iii) Older Adults,
(iv) Health and Health Disparities, and (v) Government Efficiency and Effectiveness; and

Whereas, to further these goals, the parties have identified a set of indicators and goals that
are aligned with the Wisconsin County Health Rankings Model Structure, copies of which are

attached hereto as Attachment A and B and

Whereas, the parties desire to enter into this Agreement to continue the Summit 2020
Quality of Life Project, to provide for the management of the same by the Health District, and to
set forth the funding necessary to continue the project for the period January 1, 2019 through

December 31, 2020.

Now, therefore, in consideration of the mutual premises and covenants hereinafter set forth,
the parties hereby agree as follows:

1. Services and Deliverables. County, SCCS, DD Board and ADM are purchasing, and the
Health District shall deliver performance of, the services outlined on, and in accordance
with, the scope of services set forth on Attachment C.

2. Term. The term of this Agreement shall be January 1, 2019 through December 31, 2020,
unless terminated as provided herein.

3. Compensation. The County shall pay the Health District a sum not to exceed $260,000.00
for all services satisfactorily performed under this Agreement. Said compensation shall
pay for the personnel costs for the Project Coordinator, Epidemiology/Statistical/ Mapping
Staff Member, Project Staff, expenses, contracts and other costs as set forth on Attachment
D, attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. Additionally, the parties
acknowledge that the sum of $41,493, which was previously funded by the parties and
remains as a carryover on hand with the County, may be paid to the Health District upon

services rendered.



For all other sums to be paid to the Health District including the non-personnel costs
identified on Attachment D and the carry-over funds identified above, County shall
reimburse the Health District up to the amounts so stated, upon the Health District incurring
necessary expenses and providing a request in writing to the County. County shall make
payment within thirty (30) days of receipt of said request for payment.

The above compensation shall be the total compensation due to the Health District from all
parties to this Agreement for the services to be rendered by the Health District, including
any subcontracts entered into by the Health District for the performance of those services.

In addition to the compensation set forth above, the Health District agrees to contribute at
10 cost to the parties of this Agreement additional in-kind services in the amount of $77,113
per calendar year, in the form of an additional 14 hours per week of work on the project by

the Health Commissioner.

- Allocation of Health District Costs Between the Parties. The parties hereby agree that each
shall be responsible for the payment of the following share of the Health Department’s
costs for the period of January 1, 2019 through December 31, 2020:

Party Name Percentage Share 1/1/19-12/31/20 Amt.
County 25% $65,000.00

SCCS 25% $65,000.00

DD Board 25% $65,000.00

ADM 25% $65,000.00

Total 100% $260,000.00

ADM, DD Board and SCCS shall pay to the County each party’s share in the amount set
forth above, no later than fifteen (15) days of the execution of this Agreement. County
shall allocate those funds, as well as the County’s share, in a separate fund from which the
payments set forth in Section 3, above, shall be paid to the Health District. In the event
there is any unused balance in said fund upon the completion of this Agreement, said funds
shall be remitted in equal shares to the County, ADM, DD Board and SCCS, unless

otherwise agreed in writing by the parties.

- Additional Subcontracts. The Health District shall obtain the written consent of the County
prior to entering into any subcontract for services necessary to perform its obligations under

this Agreement.

- Reports and Records. Health District shall maintain and provide to County upon demand
the following reports and records:

a. Accounting and fiscal records adequate to enable the County or the State of Ohio
or any duly-appointed law enforcement agency to audit and otherwise verify that
funds provided under this Agreement are used for the purpose stated in this

Agreement.



7.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

b. Other reports and records as required by the County to enable County to comply
with local, state and federal statutes and regulations.

Termination. The County may terminate this Agreement immediately upon written notice
to all parties. Upon termination of this Agreement, Health District shall immediately cease
all activities relating to this Agreement and deliver to the County all work in progress, all
property of the County and all information and other materials received or developed under
this Agreement. At the County’s request, the Health District shall also assist County in
efficiently transitioning the Project to any new party who is selected to continue the Project.
County shall compensate Health District, at cost, for any services performed in the
transitioning of the Project. Health District shall reimburse County for all unspent funds
and an unspent prorated share of any funds paid to the Health District for the entire contract
term. County shall evenly distribute any funds received under this Section to the County,

ADM, DD Board and SCCS.

Amendment or Modification. This Agreement may be amended or modified by the parties
provided that any such amendment or modification makes specific reference to this
Agreement, is executed in writing and signed by a duly authorized representative of each

party.

Integration. This Agreement represents the entire and integrated Agreement between the
parties for the term specified herein. This Agreement supersedes all prior and
contemporaneous communications, representations, understandings, agreements or
contracts, whether oral or written, relating to the subject matter of this Agreement.

Capacity to Execute. Each party hereby certifies that all actions necessary to execute this
Agreement were taken and that the person executing this Agreement is authorized to do so
and has the power to bind his or her respective party to the terms and conditions contained

herein.

Compliance with Applicable Laws. Each party agrees to comply with all applicable
federal, state and local laws, orders, rules and regulations in its performance under this

Agreement.

Waiver. The remedies contained in this Agreement shall be cumulative and additional to
any remedies provided in law or equity. No waiver of a breach of any provision of this
Agreement shall constitute a waiver of any other provision.

Relationship of Parties. The parties agree that at no time shall the relationship between the
parties under this Agreement be construed, held out or considered a joint venture, principal-

agent or employer-employee.

Govemning Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with
the laws of the State of Ohio, without giving effect to the principles thereof relating to
conflicts of choice of laws. Any litigation arising under this Agreement must be litigated



in the Akron Municipal Court or the Summit County Court of Common Pleas, and each
party submits to the jurisdiction and venue of those courts,

15. Execution in Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts by the parties,
and shall be effective on the latest date a counterpart is executed by a party.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereby sign this Agreement effective as of the date first
written above.

COUNTY OF SUMMIT, OHIO

Ilene Shapiro, Executive Date

Approved as to form and correctness:

Deborah S. Matz Date
Director, Department of Law

COUNTY OF SUMMIT DEPARTMENT OF JOB
AND FAMILY SERVICES

Terri Burns, Director Date
Approved as to form and correctness:

Anita Davis Date

CSDJFS Legal Counsel
SUMMIT COUNTY COMBINED GENERAL

HEALTH DISTRICT

Donna Skoda, Health Commissioner Date

Approved as to form and correctness:

Legal Counsel Date



SUMMIT COUNTY CHILDREN SERVICES
BOARD

Julie Barnes, Executive Director Date

Approved as to form and correctness:

Legal Counsel Date

COUNTY OF SUMMIT BOARD OF
DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES

John Trunk, Superintendent Date

Approved as to form and correctness:

Legal Counsel Date

COUNTY OF SUMMIT ALCOHOL, DRUG
ADDICTION AND MENTAL HEALTH
SERVICES BOARD

Jerry Craig, Executive Director Date

Approved as to form and correctness:

Legal Counsel Date



EXHIBIT “A”



Attachment A

Long Term Project Goals

Initiative 1: Economic Stability and Prosperity:

Decrease the proportion of people living below the official poverty line from 15.8% to 7.8%.
Decrease the proportion of African-Americans living below the poverty line from 37.9% to
7.8%.

Reduce unemployment from its 2012 rate of 9.7% to 6.0%

Increase the proportion of people aged 25 and over who have a 2-year or greater degree from
37.2% to 45.0%

Increase the county’s high school graduation rate from 83.9% to 90.0%

Increase the percentage of 3 graders scoring “Proficient” or above on the 3% grade reading
proficiency test from 59.5% to 80.0%

Increase housing affordability, reducing the proportion of households spending more than 30%
of their incomes on housing from 30.6% to 22.7%

Reduce the violent crime arrest rate (no county-wide goal set)

Initiative 2: Early Childhood:

Increase the percent of children receiving immunizations by their second birthdays from 68.8%

to 90.0%
Reduce the percent of children in need of protective services from 17.2 per 1,000 children to

12.3 per 1,000 children
Reduce the percent of children who age out of foster care from 31 .6% of those in permanent

custody to 24.7% of those in permanent custody

Initiative 3: Older Adults:

Reduce the incidence of elder abuse and neglect from 12.7 per 1,000 persons age 60 or older to
6.0 per 1,000 persons age 60 or older

Initiative 4: Health and Health Disparities:

Increase the percent of pregnant women receiving first trimester prenatal care from 74.8% to
90.0%

Decrease the African-American teen birth rate from 45.8 per 1,000 to 26.8 per 1,000

Decrease the percent of individuals without health insurance from 13.9% to 11.0%

Decrease the percent of persons who say they are in fair or poor health from 14.5% to 10.0%
Decrease the percent of persons with a BMI of 29.9 or higher from 22.1% to 19.9%

Reduce the rate of Years of Potential Life Lost from All Causes from 7,737 per 100,000 to 5,317

per 100,000

Initiative 5: Government Efficiency and Effectiveness:

Maintain the goal of zero Financial Condition Indicators showing “warning trends” for the ADM

board
Maintain the goal of zero Financial Condition Indicators showing “wamning trends” for the DD

board
Maintain the goal of zero Financial Condition Indicators showing “warning trends” for SCCS



EXHIBIT “B”



Attachment B

Summit 2020 Priority Indicators

Initiative / Indicator

L. Economic Stability and Prosperity

1 Poverty Rate *
2 African-American Poverty Rate *
3 Unemployment Rate
4 Percent of Persons Age 25+ With a 2-Year or Greater Degree
5 Public High School Longitudinal Graduation Rate
6 Percent of 3rd Graders Scoring "Proficient" or Above on the 3rd Grade Reading Test
7 Percent of Households Paying More than 30 percent of Income on Housing
8 Percent of Households Receiving Food Stamps
9 Violent crime arrest rate per 100,000 population
IL. Early Childhood **
10 Percent of Children Receiving Immunizations by Their Second Birthdays
11 Number of Children In Need of Protective Services (CHIPS) per 1,000 children
12 Number of Children Who Age Out of Foster Care per 1,000 children

II1. Older Adults

13

Elder Abuse, Neglect, Self-Neglect, or Exploitation Referrals per 1,000 seniors

IV. Health and Health Disparities

14
15
16
17
18
19

Percent of Pregnant Women Receiving First Trimester Prenatal Care
African-American Teen Birth Rate

Percent of Persons Age 18-64 Who Have Health Tnsurance

Percent of Persons Age 18-64 Who Say They Are In Fair or Poor Health
Percent of Persons Age 18-64 With A BMI in the "Obese" Category

Years of Potential Life Lost

V. Government Efficiency and Effectiveness

20
21
22

Percent of ADM Financial Condition Indicators showing "warning trends"
Percent of DD Board Financial Condition Indicators showing "warning trends"
Percent of SCCS Financial Condition Indicators showing "warning trends"

* While only the overall poverty rates will be tracked as the "official" poverty indicators, we
will continue to track and report on poverty for critical subgroups such as children, seniors,
and single heads-of-households as appropriate.

** As with poverty rates, while these three indicators will be the "official" Summit 2020
priority indicators, project staff will be reporting on a series of early childhood indicators as
part of the county's First Things First initiative.



EXHIBIT “C”



Attachment C: Scope of Work

PV
[ A\~

A Quality of Life Pro

This contract would begin January 1, 2019 and end December 31, 2020 and is not to exceed
$260,000.00 for two years.

1. Facilitate the continuity of Summit 2020; A Quality of Life Project initiatives -
Project staff will continue to facilitate and/or provide support to the main five

initiatives:

a. Early Childhood/ First T, hings First- The purpose of this initiative is to develop
and implement a comprehensive plan to enhance the early childhood service-
delivery system in Summit County. This comprehensive plan will guide
acquisition and allocation of resources, integrate new information from research
and local experts, set priorities with performance indicators that can be tracked
and measured, align local efforts with state initiatives, and build a common
community commitment to early care and education. First Things First currently
aligns work within the following areas:

i. Early Care and Education
it. Family Wellness
ili. Professional Development

b. Older Adults - The purpose of this initiative is to develop and implement a
comprehensive plan to advocate and build support for change benefiting older
adults at the local, state, and national level. Additionally, this initiative develops
programming to optimize the self-sufficiency and independence of all our older
citizens, with an emphasis on alleviating of poverty, reducing the incidence of
elder abuse / neglect, and maintaining senior health.

i. Senior Independent Living Coalition
ii. Adult Protective Services
ii. Volunteer Guardian Program

C. Health and Health Disparities - The purpose of this initiative is to develop and
implement a comprehensive plan to promote improved health and reduce health
disparities for all Summit County residents. The plan will address such critical,
longstanding issues as the cost of and access to health care and medications,
coordination of care and/or case management (particularly among those with both
behavioral health and physical health issues), as well as individual behaviors that
erode the health of the population as a whole. An integral part of this plan will be
the construction of a county health assessment system largely based on the
University of Wisconsin Population Health Institute’s county health rankings
reports (a system which relies primarily on well-established social determinants of
health to provide insight into the long-term health prospects of communities),

1. Youth Violence Prevention



Attachment C: Scope of Work

ii. Worksite Wellness
iii. Translation Services Task Force

d. Economic Stability and Prosperity - The purpose of this initiative is to develop

and implement a comprehensive plan to promote the economic stability and
prosperity of all Summit County residents, particularly those of working age and
their families. This plan will utilize cutting-edge approaches to address long-term,
systemic problems that undercut stability and prosperity such as poverty,
educational attainment, housing affordability and foreclosures, employment and
retraining, and basic financial literacy. This initiative will also promote stability
and prosperity by addressing issues unique to special populations such as ex-
offender re-entry and children aging out of the foster care system.

1. Income Education Workforce Development Committee

ii. LARC Project

Government Efficiency and Effectiveness - The purpose of this initiative is to
strengthen collaboration between the county’s major public health and social
service systems, and the effectiveness of services they finance or deliver. To
fulfill this purpose, this initiative will facilitate the development and
implementation by various county agencies and non-profit service providers of a
system that links providers in multiple organizations and specialties. These links
will help create efficiencies, time and cost savings for both referral initiators and
responders, thereby improving the quality of client and patient care. In addition,
this initiative will promote increased accountability by the three levy-funded
agencies (Summit County Children Services, Summit County Developmental
Disabilities Board, and the Summit County Alcohol, Drug, and Mental Health
Board). This purpose will be accomplished by providing increased support for the
SSAB’s Budget and Levy Review Committee

1. Levy Funded Agency Financial Condition Report

2. Staff will convene the Board to conduct a strategic planning session to analyze the
Summit 2020 indicators, assess progress in meeting identified goals, and set new

targets for Summit 2030.

3. Project staff will continue to update data made available to the public and
community partners. Staff will also support ad hoc data requests relative to the
missions of the three levy-funded agencies.

SRR Mo s o

Summit County Birth Data Brief

Summit County Death Data Brief

Summit County Overdose Data Brief

Summit County Birth Data Dashboard

Summit County Mortality Data Dashboard

Summit County Drug Overdose Emergency Department Visit Dashboard
Summit County Municipality Profile Dashboard

Alcohol-related Mortality Dashboard

Overdose Morality Dashboard



Attachment C: Scope of Work

J. Opiate Epidemic Story Map
k. Social Determinants of Health Story Map
L. Summit County Asset Map

4. Staff will continue to monitor the progress of initiatives created through various
partner networks to reduce duplication of services and increase knowledge
regarding the work of the community. Staff will remain active through participation
on the following steering committees and workgroups.

Addiction Leadership Council

Summit Coalition for Community Health Improvement
Summit County Better Birth Outcomes

a.
b. Akron Summit Community Reinvestment Coalition

c. Akron Children’s Community Health Needs Assessment Steering Committee
d. Cleveland Clinic Akron General Community Advisory Group

e. EMA — Summit County

f.  Employers for Health Consortium

g. Fairlawn Safety Committee

h. Opiate Task Force

1. Refugee Task Force

il

k.

5. Staff will continue to identify health priorities in Summit County and coordinate
action to improve population health and promote health equity. Staff will convene
community partners to develop, coordinate, implement and monitor strategies

regarding the following priority areas:
Adolescent health

Aging population

Chronic disease prevention
Maternal and infant health
Mental health and addiction

Sae o

6. Staff will identify opportunities to encourage decision-makers to incorporate health
into policy, planning and strategy development. Policy strategies include:
a. Health in All Policies
b. Complete Streets
c. T21
d. Housing policy



EXHIBIT “D”



:$150) [PUNOSIad-ToN

798°801$ :1€10) s)ouag pue Arefeg
(P85°1$) % 1B [eosty - wosduoy | 311D PUL (019'31§) %07 Ist8ojormapidy 9D — SEUNOIRIN Yoryg ‘(£ 1°2,8)
BPOY§ BUUO( 10] Pury-ur skep om) snid (899°68¢) %001 I03euIp100)) J00f01] — 11804 Waqezi[g 1of sygousq pue A1eres oyy spoddns j00 foxd oy,

Sjyoudy pue ATejeg
‘uonedynsnp }p3png
E6V'LLLS V1oL
L£9°Z9 $ c6vLy $ 8cLiz $
LE9 LY $ €6v've $ 8€L $ "OSIN sjoequon
000‘c $ 000°E $ "OSiN seyddng
000°2 $ o000t $ o000¢ $ Bunuug
000’8 $ oo00'c $ 000‘s $  sosusdxg Bunespy
000°c $ 000'¢ $ ENCTT
leyoy (pa3oafoag) 196png 610z
d8nQ Aues gLoz
muwoo _w::Om._wn_ UON
298'801L$ Sijoueg @ seuejeg
298801 $ pz $ £56'61 $ vigL $ 160°L $ S65'01 $ 6295/ $
¥8S'y $ 1 $ /88 $ €9 $ of $ by $ ibl'e $ uosdwoy] Bieis
89968 ¢ 6L $ 8bsiL $ o951y $ sc8 $ v60'g $ €189 $ 18}so4 Yleqezy g
0L98L ¢ $ 8ieL $ V62 $ 1z $ 1902 $ 6LLYL $  senosep preyory
abuny g oy Yiesay dwogym aiedipay s¥3d Kiejeg jejo .
) Aiejeg jejo

$1S0) |auUUOsIay

186png 610z a1 Jo Ayeny
d Yudwyoeyy



EXHIBIT “E”



'SjuspIsal Ayjuno)) nurung jo
‘A3AIng 2ouR[[IoAINg 1008 ] 3SIY [elotARyeg QOQZ Y] ©
"SJU3pISaI AJuno)) yunung jo
‘Adamng yiresH Arwe ] oMo 8007 oYL ©
"SORIUNTILIOD S} pue AJuno))
HWWINg JO JUSWSSISSE UOPIPUOD [R100S PUB [3[esY “01uouoos pajrelap e papiaoid UDIYM ‘UBOS [BJUSWIUONIAUY €007 oY, O
:apnout ‘Sutpuny juesd pue suoresado ATtep yyoq 10§
s1op1aoxd ao1atss yyord-uou pue o1qnd £q Ajrenga1 pesn ‘syrodar OS], 'SIseq JB[NFaI B UO SO IUNWIWIOD pus spooyIoqy3isu
) pue £juno) ymuumg ug SUOBIPUOD [E150S pue “Yi[esy ‘Oruroucos szATeue 0 syodor PU® saseqeiep Jo souas & padofoas e

SIOIABYSQ YL (3[eay 38 j0O[ aAIsusyaIdwos e papraoid yotym

STHE}S SouBINSUL )[esy puUe y[Eay oy N0qE UoyeuLIOIUI [2oRLId papiaoid yorym

810C Ul Ue[q 913211 UORUBAAL] SOUS[OTA o x
L10T Wt ued o13a1eng 1511 sTuryy, 1sig
L10T Ut ue[q Juswaoxduy yyeay Aununuoy) mau v padofaaa(y
S10T Wt (dIHD) ueld JuswsAoxdul] yiesy Ayumurmo)) parepdny
"(uerd pooypyyo AJres dAISUaYLIdWOS 1511y 8, A)unoo atp) IsaL s3ury ], 3sir,
ueld o1391eng uonifeo) Suiary Juepuadapu] Jorag
"UE[d $901AISS [B100S pUE Yi[esy oAIsusyaidwoy)
‘(ar0woNeT ‘[eyyong ‘uouaqIed) suelq o13o1Eng POOYIOqUSIaN pajedre] sam ],
(uonuoasid Aousnburjep pue sonsnf o[waAn() ue[q ssaoong 10y diyszoupe g
ueld AyunpoddQ srwouoog pue JuswWdo3AS(] 9I0P0A O
‘Burpnjour ‘suonIpyoo [e0s PUe jreaty sao1duir 03 pouSisop sueyd o souos e Jouonear) e
“21ep 03 aloxd gz(z yurumg oty o sjusuystdiioooe £33 oy JO I81] © ST MO[og

0O 0O0OO0OO0OO0ODODOO

‘SaAlenuI pue sanuoud Ajumuros IOUHIY 0} I9PIO UL Jeaq 0} $301n08a1 MoU Suriq 03 so1 1oofoxd awp ‘srerrdordde ooy p

IS} USAIS ® 0} PoRIUINIos Apesie seoInosal 103 93duios pue spropzs Junsxa Sjea1fdnp 03 Suiky uey) 1oyyes ‘ojqissod IsAduayMm
S[e0d Ayunwros ysiduosse oy suerd pue saanenmn Sunsixs uo pana1 sheme sey 1afoxd g7z jwng o) ‘uonippe uj

‘03 POIWUTOD [[& 9ABY SAI0USTE JUSWILIAA0T

PUE SUONEZIUESI0 paseq-yite} ‘sjyoid-10]-jou ‘SUOEPUNOY YoNm Apuntuwios ot UL SUORIPUOD [BIO0S PUE [3[BAY “OIUIOU0DD

Suraoxduwr 10y s1Ro8 Jo 108 P3IBYS B pUnoIe snsuasuod Jo uoneads s joafoxd aiyy USNOIY) paAsTor Usaq Sey STy, "AJOATOP 901AIOS
Uy pue |mesy sj1 J0 UOYRUIPIOnd o) aao1duwr Ajununwos oy padijay sey yoafoxd (z(z mumng a1 ‘vondaour )1 s0UIg

8102-£00T 109f014 070z Mmuumg ay) jo sjuswysiiduioooy Aoy

q Juowyor)y



‘uoissa1dap [eurejer wogy Suuspns
USIPTYD Sunof jo siaow pue uswom tueudaid diay 0 spomjan uoissaxda( [euIiRIN o) Uustqeiss padiey ‘sanenur isig

SSury ] 18114 oy ur szouyred 1Byi0 pue Ajunoy jruwng jo preog BIESH [BJUdN pue ‘Bni ‘[oyooly oty pim uonRIOqR[[0o Uf

“Aununons sy o) Surumgyoar sio

PUS3J0-X3 0 5901AISS §, AJunoo oy SJEUIPIO0I 0 JOJEUIPIOO)) ANuF-0y
€ 30 Suuny oy pue ( NYIOS) JiompN Anuasy Ayjunoy

HUWwng ot} ystqe)sa 03 szoupred Ajununmoo [I9A9S y3im patelogerio)

938 Apdaod quowkordurs ‘TONEANDS se yons s10j0e}
OIHIOUODd pue [B150S )M PIBJISA0 ‘S301n081 Amununuoo Aynuspr o e1ep sutjogu] 3wizijun dejy a01nosay © padofeasq o

"910¢ 3uLmp sasop1aso o1erdo yo asiu pider 03 asuodsar UlJaug ere(q 9soproaQ Sni( Jo aseday o
"A)I[E1IOW JUBJUI pUE SOWONNO UMIq “ti[eay Jueyul pue [eusajet ‘Koueioadxs 31]
‘ 1ao1d gormgm sowas rodos Joud sonsuels enA padopasq o

"uoneunoyu owjderSouap
191SS Pa[IeIep sapnour A1ojusut sty “QATIRIIUL
OIAISS pootp[Iyd ALes Jo A10jusAur ue Jo Juowdopoasg o

'(**Juswdoraasp yino4
Papuny a1om yomm sease joofqns oy pue Ajunos U} U pajsaAut Jurpuny ojqe;Lreto
[E90] J0 syunowe refjop sopnjour oMM 900 Ut 11odal pajerdosse pue oseqeje( Sutpuny s[qejuey) e Jo wowdoraasg o
‘s1oyestpur Qyuoud oz s, 305(0xd o3 uo ssardoxd
U0 Ajrunwmion iy s¥epdn 03 (8107 pue ¢ 10T €102 ‘110Z ‘6007 © L007T) 21ep 0} sy1odar ssorSoxd Ie[n3a1 X1s Jo aseo[oy o

"Ajunoo sy jo uonemdod [eIoua3 oy} Jo suonpuos
WIeay szATeue 0) pasn Suraq ore YEU3 G3eap JO sasned se [jom Se ‘SuonIpuod UHESY PIIYD PUE [BULISIEW UO UOHEULIOJUT

[e31A 3piaoid spiosar asay [, '8002-0661 WOy SPI0d21 Yyeap pue yiIq Jo 9Seqerep dalsusyordwoo € Jo uonear) o
AsAIg 101ABYOg YSTY YINo & 810¢ 943 Jo uonriuswoydwr uedaq pue pouuerg o

SuSpms J00YSs Y31y pue opprur A3uno))
"AdaIng Jo1Aryag sy yno g r1ozeql o

jueAd[a1 pue s1op1A0d 9514108 J0 uoneoo[ Fuimoys sdewr I9)snjo-£q-
18114 SBUN], 1S4 a1y Jo ped se sIapiaoxd so1A10s pue so

‘s901A 108 uetny ‘voneonpe o)

HUWUWNg JO SI01ABYSq JSUI yyjeay Je 00] aA1sUSYa1dwWod ® papraocid yorym

d Jusumgoeyy



'SISJIOM [iESH Ajrunurwosy
qQuH sfemyreq HaoS pue unisip swoyy HdDS DIM ‘Fesjusain yiim ooﬂmﬁbﬁobzoEmm_ooouoa Ebomo&.&o@?o&

OdVT YHm 1083000 Ut uswom jnd o pejuswsdwr axe sjo00j01d [enogal yomm ut wresdoxd jonid Hyyy Jo juswdopaaay

‘sdnoig
Pue sa10usSe JusunaAo3 o uonIeos e jo
Rue ue ‘weigoid A11vA04 J0 MO $o8pLg 2y payoune|

Pa1a81e) 913 JO U0 o18 218D 19350J 30 100 o8e oym uwaIpyIy) ‘s1opuny ordoxyqyueyd
Hoddns ot ym werSoxd U} 103 JOTRUIPIOOD ® paiy pue ‘Wogge Apaaod-

"YINOA SSO[oWIoY pue Ysu je $ Auno) jrunung
031 sad1nosar yuswkojduws pue [euonesnps apraoid o) yosfo1g B[[SIQUI) $301AT0G URIP[IY)) Ajuno)) jumung a3 ut uonedionieg
92404 YsvT uoypdiouvuiyg sa01a10g UBIPII) AJunoy) yrurumg oyj ur uonjedione g

SIeurss juawdooaap
[euorssajoid aomy) pue S$19MOUS Aqeq Ayruntuuios 93143 paysoy sey sepruwio)) spoddng Aqrure, 181y sSury, s oy

"USIP[IYO BunoA£ I1ot) 107 $[00) Suruaaios Juepodun asoyy
03 $8900% sjuated Ljuno) jruuwng [Te SuIAIS ‘sjustussasse OUI|-UO Sapnjouf Os[e 11030 SIy L, "SJUSUIYSTqRISS d1e0kep A1uno))

Hunng ur (JUouIssasse [BUOROWS- (81008 HS-OSV Y1 PUL JUSUISSISSE [ejuawdopasp ¢-OSY) lfeuuonsan() safe)g pue sofy
Y3 Jo asn ay) puedxs 03 ueyd & pajuswa[dur ‘sentunuoy) ymyesy [eI0tARYq Js11 sTuny ], Is11,] oy pue DOPIUWOD) UOHUSAISIU]
Aty pue spaon [e10adg is11q sgunyg, 18114 23 ‘sanIIqesI(y [ejuewdolaas( jo preog Auno) yunung oy ypim UONBIOGR][00 U]

"O[qB[TBAR §301A10s Sj0wold pue uoissaida(g
1p100D) y10MI0N BOISsaIda(] [euIsyRpy paIry

q juowrgoeny



'SJuapIsar Ayunoy) jrwwmg oy Sutuued a1es soueApe o

Jowold 03 $931n0sa1 PUE S1USAQ pajeuIpIood JIIS Jopun sayuuuiooqns
€ Yomm ul (910g pue 610z [udy) susmed

Wed AB(] SUOISIA( 1)) WIBSH [EUONEN SANOSUOD 0Mm) UT pajedonieg

Aousrogng-jeg ©
asNqy 2p[g o

UoneoNpy pue A0BO0APY O
-9PNJoUI SNo0J Jo seale Jofew SOTIS 's[eroyjo osrgnd pue ‘Ajrununuos 94} 3O SloquIow ‘sa1ed0APER ‘S10pIA0Id 901AIS Surpnjoun

SIapes] Ayunwuios pajusuio }INPE-I9P[0 JO UOLIE0S Paseq-peoiq & () TIS) uonieo) 3wiAr juspusdopuy Jomag oy Jo uoneary

"99)1IWWO.)
AMHI 2yr £4q padofaaap saoinosax Juswiordws jusserd o3 sywwns J3e)s Aouafe omy pue syrwns 10[aSUN0S J00YDs 0m) Pajsol]
SpImH SIS yog  ©
opmy Furddepy wo1ey ©
SOpIND 90IN0SY 19329G qOf  ©
Sapmy) 221nosay wAojdwy o
SpIMD SSOU[[OM PUR YJ[BIH ©
(Jouuosiod 11000 £q asn J0J) 9pID) $90IAIDG [BIOOS  ©

S9pIND 92In0SaY pooyioqysoN ©
:Juipnjour ‘sopm8 a01nosa; Aunuwwon Jo Aewie opim v pAINQISIp pue padopaacg

[0042S S p1Iyd 1101} Je S0y Jes)unjoA Jo USUNIUIIOD © 1
€ USIP[IYD J00Y0s 0 sjussed oA18 0y wesod j0
Aunuos gie| u1 pagedus pue sjusprsal oy $991

0J 98UBRYOXS Ul 31 9sn 0} Suturen pue swoy st 1oy 1oinduros
Iid & pue sweiSoxd Surpear 1011d 3pn[ouL S0IALSS S50Y[ | "Spoj¥e uruued
AI3S JO KJOUIBA B PIISAT[OP SAET Yoty sjoefoxd pooyioquSiou moy palonig

9OUBINSUL [)[E3Y 0} SS2008 ISESIOU 0} JOPIO Ul SJUSPISAI AJUN0Y) Jrurumg

0} s901AI3s UoneTIARU or]djoN IR doueinsuy
UieaYy spiaoid o3 “oug (VISV) uonpy Ul Sad1AlRS UBISY pue (JVHD) disiouie

d WHEH $8000V eF0teAN) yiim pajeioqe[jo))

"S9IAISS AJIUNUIIOD JO KjoLRA OpIM B Joy dn-mofjoj pue
‘Sutusalos oyendoxdde aare0ax SI9[ed 18y} SULINSO ‘aoue)sisse 10j s[[eo
dlqng Lyuno) muuing je yun UOHEBUIPIOOD) a1e)) 8Yj} JO JUSUNYST[qRIS

‘[e119)a1 “‘UonRUTULINEP ANMqiSie Yuowssasse spagu
01 spuodsar Jiun uoyeUIpI00,) S1E)) SYL "Z10Z W yiedy

d juouryoepy



JUSWISSISSY YiTeaH Ajunwwwio)) 910z oy 25201 0 P[eSH s.£1uno)) sy Jo oyeyg [enuuy puC O} PISOH

JUSTISSOSSY (3[BSH AUnumuo)) 91(g oy Joj SI0esIpu 103138 pue 19A ‘SSNOSIP 0} saUsTe
Aununuos pue syyoid-uou Jodn

013}10M (THDDS) uowsAcIdw] Yy Ayunurwor) 103 wonIRO) HUIUNG SYf} JO UOHBAIL)

o11qnd 21} 0) pajuasaid

sem ajepdp) uelq yuswaordur yesy Ayununo)) 10z 9y Yomyam ur yieoy 5. Auno) ayy o arelg [enuuy | oy pejsol

'S9101]0d SSaU[[oM 2JISHIOM SSOSSE 03 swofordwe Ayuno) yurung g Ajerewnxoidde Ul PIB33109S DI SY) Pejonpuo))

'S30IN0SAT SSIU[[IM YISHIOM IS0 MO[ PUR 331] apiaoid

0} ‘sassauIsnq [fews Jo s1£o[dws spremoy Pa3931e) ‘$0U01SJU0)) SSAU[D A\ 10] suordwey)) [enUUY 5ANNOASUOD 9911y OISO

'S @3 Jopun uaIp[IYo Jo syusred 10} S[00} JUSWISSISSE PUE UOHBULIOJUI JO AJOLIRA OPIM B sap1aoid et syuored
10J 30In0saI dUI[-UO dAISUSYRIdWIOD B A\Eoo.HmEquEtmE\»E:ooﬁEE:m\\”aﬁﬁ ONISQaM 1SIL] STUNYT, ISIL] oY) JO JuswaSeuey

"BUIPLO[UAOP IOF S30MOS3I JO Ajourea e sapiaoid pue sapianoe s 100loxd
93 JO 1sea1qe Aeys Ayrunwrwos oty sdjoy yorym ‘(310 TTUTINSAT ST MMA) 9JISqIM (Z()T juuimng oy} 3o youne| pue uones1))

"AJUNoY JwWNg ur SIOUSs Jo uone[ndod Surmoi3 oy Surssorppe e pawte sa13ojens dojpaap
PUE JUSWISSasse Spoaut T0TUas € 3onpuos 0} sisupred Ajrunuruoo oy30 pue (Aous8y BAIV) SWOH UOHILIIT YPIMm pareroqer[o)

‘SIRUIWDS QI8
oAnel[Ted 010Z PUe 6007 S NOD NOAN 10suods padjay osfe ‘Surdy uo Lousdy aogofﬁws&ﬁ.ﬁcﬁwmwwoﬁo@omo_o@w

UOTYM “DANBHIUL ST ], "SISQUIS 35USIPNE (0000 30 dIySIoMIIA POYeTUNSD U Yiim “P[oY alom S3UIMOYS YIUOW-001y) OM ]
"AJunod ayy Jnoydnorys soxeatyy STIOLEA UL UMOYS 3q 0} J09[3aU PUE 9sNQe I3]0 0} UORUSYE [[e5 0} VSd Pu0das-g | e padopas(g

"WR)SAS SAOIAISG 9AN92)01] INPY S, LIUNod 9} y3noxyy sases uo dn Fuimorjoy pue

BUNEZ1SIAUL 10] SO01AISG AJTUE,] pue Qof 3o Jusuwieda(g AJUn0)) JUUING Y} [PIM [opot SANBIOQET[0D © JO JuswdoaAap ay |

g usurgoeny



"SOJTAISS UONR}RIdIo)UI JO S3500

gurseaxout oY) Surpredai oAnnoaxy £Junoy) SY3 0] SUOHEPUSUIIIIOD] S)BUI 0} 3010, JSB, SIOIAIdG Uone|suel] v pado[aas(]

Ue[d JuswaAoiduw] y{esH AUnuwo)) /(7 Sy) 5ea[aI 0) YIESH S,KIUN0Y) 3y} JO S)B)S [Enuuy ps€ U3 PISOY

"SIBOA 9011} 19A0
pa1ojuoW s313ajens J0 308 B Sapn[oul eaxk Ayoud Yorg UOHOIPPY 2 YIESH _Szozvna::momﬁﬁﬁﬁEﬁoﬁzdmgma

ooy ‘uonendod SwISy ‘YyesH Jusosajopy :seare Lyoud Al yim ue[d Juswesordwy yieoy Aunwwo)) e padopas

d juswyoeny



Attachment #2
Summit County Developmental Disabilities Board

TOPIC SUMMARY REPORT

TOPIC ISSUE/CONCERN RECOMMENDATION
Contract with Summit | Summit DD contributes funds to a | Summit DD to continue participation in
County Family and shared pool which assists children | shared pool agreement for amount of
Children First Council | and families involved in multi- $110,700 for the time period of
Shared Pool for Youth | systems. January 1, 2019 through December 31,
(Service Review 2019.
Collaborative)

SUPPORTING DATA FOR RECOMMENDATION

Service Area: SSA
Amount of Increase/Decrease: $0, Total Cost $110,700

As required by ORC 121.37 (C) (1-9), Family and Children First Councils must develop a county-
specific Service Coordination Mechanism (SCM), which serves as the guiding document for
coordination of services in the county. The purpose of the Service Coordination Mechanism is to
streamline and coordinate existing government services for families seeking services for their children
(age birth through 21) and to ensure that eligible families have access to service coordination.
Developed from the SCM, a team of professionals from child serving agencies in Summit County
meets weekly to:
* Review and monitor requests for community-based services for children with multi-system
needs
 Offer case consultation from a multi-system perspective to staff from any agency dealing with a
complex youth/family
Refer families for wrap around/service coordination
e Review individual cases that are in need of more restrictive placement settings such as
residential treatment and monitoring youth in residential treatment.
¢ Issuing recommendations and/or offering alternatives to better serve youth and families

Data from 4/1/18 to 10/31/18:
1) WrapAround/Service Coordination
60 unduplicated referrals accepted and opened
Case load average is 20
Of the 60 unduplicated youth referrals, 10 were DD involved youth (17%)
2) Case Consultation
20 referrals accepted and reviewed by SRC; for 16 unduplicated youth
Of the 16 unduplicated youth, 7 were DD involved youth (44%)

Submitted By: _ Holly Brugh For: Superintendent/Assistant Superintendent
X Finance & Facilities Committee
Date: December 2018 X ____ Services & Supports Committee

HR/LR Committee




Summit County Developmental Disabilities Board
TOPIC SUMMARY REPORT

3) Funding Requests for Community Based Services
56 funding requests reviewed by SRC; for 37 unduplicated youth
47 out of 56 funding requests were approved (i.e. camp, safety items, sensory items, Y
membership, gas cards, structured activities and mentoring)
$57,834 encumbered
Of the 37 unduplicated youth referred, 17 were DD involved (46%)
4) Funding Requests for Out of Home Placement (i.e. Residential Treatment, group home, etc.)
13 requests reviewed; for 11 unduplicated youth
Of the 11 unduplicated youth, 3 were DD involved (27%)

Funds from this contract will be pooled with funds from Summit County Children’s Services
($171,245), Juvenile Court ($131,084), and the ADM Board ($145,431) to support the work of this
group and the various needs of the children/families involved including residential placement.

Summit DD will have 2 staff members who serve as part of this committee and will have access to
bring any Board eligible child/family to the committee for support and funding recommendations.

Recommended for approval by the December Services & Supports
and Finance & Facilities Committees.

Submitted By: __ Holly Brugh For: Superintendent/Assistant Superintendent
X Finance & Facilities Committee
Date: December 2018 X Services & Supports Committee

HR/LR Committee



SUMMIT COUNTY FAMILY AND CHILDREN FIRST COUNCIL/SUMMIT COUNTY
SHARED POOL FOR YOUTH FUNDING AGREEMENT

This Agreement is made between County of Summit Developmental Disabilities Board (DD),
located at 89 E. Howe Ave., Tallmadge, Ohio 44278, John Trunk, Superintendent, duly authorized,
and the Summit County Family and Children First Conncil, (FCFC), authorized under Ohjo Revised

Code Section 121.37.

This Agreement is effective from January 1, 2019, until superseded by a subsequent Funding
Agreement, or specifically terminated in writing with thirty days prior notice by either party in
accordance with the notice provisions of this Agreement, or until its automatic termination on
December 31, 2019.

| 8 PURPOSE

DD agrees to contribute funding to FCFC in carrying out its statutory roles and responsibilities to
families with children who have complex, multiple needs in Swmmit County.

II. GENERAL PROVISIONS

This Agreement is made under and governed by the laws of the state of Ohio and is subject to all
applicable provisions of Ohio and Federal law and regulations related to the provision of child
welfare services to children and youth,

II.  FUND MAINTENANCE

Suromit County Combined General Health District (SCPH) located at 1867 West Market Street,
Akron, Ohio 44313 is the designated Administrative/Fiscal agent for FCFC as specified in the
Administrative/Fiscal Agent Agreement attached hereto and incorporated by reference. In
accordance with that Administrative/Fiscal Agent Agreement, and acting on behalf of FCFC, SCPH
shall maintain all funds donated to FCFC, as donated by County of Summit DD Board, Summit
County Children Services, Summit County Juvenile Court and County of Summit ADM Board in a
separate fund account. Acting as fiscal agent for FCFC, SCPH will provide accountings for funds
held in the fund account as detailed in the Administrative/Fiscal Agent Agreement.

IV. FUNDING

Under the terms of this Agreement, DD agrees to donate and deposit into the separate fund account, on
behalf of FCFC, an amount of One Hundred Ten Thousand and Seven Hundred Dollars ($110,700).
In the event of termination prior to December 31, 2019, DD shall be reimbursed proportionately and
commensurate with the actual term of the Agreement. The other contributors are: Summit County
Juvenile Court ($131,084), Summit County Children Services ($171,245), and County of Summit

ADM Board ($145,431).

Page 10f 2



V. FUND USE/ACCESS

All funds deposited into the separate fund account shall be used to pay the costs of services for
children accessing the FCFC Service Coordination Mechanism. In addition, funds will be used to
pay the salaries and fringe benefits, training, travel and supplies of FCRC Director, FCFC staff and

FCFC Cross Systems Training.

The FCFC Committee designated to manage the FCFC Service Coordination Mechanism shall
determine the eligibility of any youth regarding the use of FCFC funds. In addition, the designated
committee will determine the appropriateness of placement and/or services to be provided and
whether or not the entire cost or a portion of the cost for such services and/or placement should be
paid from the fund, The FCFC, upon receipt of the written approval of the designated committee,
may withdraw monies from the fund in amounts sufficient to pay for the approved services and make
direct payment to the service provider. The FCEC will monitor monthly expenditures to assure
gpending does not exceed the FCFC approved budget.

The financially contributing members to the fund retain oversight responsibilities and report out to
the FCFC Executive Council. Any questions, concerns or disputes regarding funding for a specific
child will be directed to the Executives of the financially contributing members of the fund. SCHD
shall provide fiscal reports to the FCFC in accordance with the Administrative/Fiscal Agent

Agreement.
VL. AGREEMENT REVIEW

No earlier than ninety (90) days and no later than sixty (60) days prior to the end of the Agreement
term (December 31, 2019), the parties shall meet to review the Funding Agreement. The purpose of
the review is to determine whether a subsequent Funding Agreement will be entered into and, if so,
designate the terms and conditions of the agreement,

VII. SEPARABILITY

This Agreement is separable. I any provision of this Agreement is declared void or invalid by any
Court, it will not affect the validity of any of the other provisions of this Agreement. If one or more
of the contributing agencies terminate and/or alter their contribution amount this contact may be

reviewed and/or amended.

YIII. COMPLETE AGREEMENT

This Agreement is the complete understanding of the parties. Anything not included in this
Agreement is not binding.

IX. MODIFICATION

Any modification of this Agreement or additional obligation by either party in connection with this
Agreement shall be binding only if evidenced in writing and signed by each party or an authorized

Page 2 of 2



representative of each party.
X.  NOT BINDING IN SUCCESSOR/ASSIGNS

This Agreement is made solely for the benefit of FCFC and 1o other person shall acquire or have any
right thereunder or by virtue hereof,

XL NO WAIVER

The failure of either party to this Agreement to insist upon the performance of any terms and
conditions of this Agreement, or the waiver of any breach of any terms and conditions of this

Agreement, shall not be construed as thereafter waiving any such terms and conditions, but the same
shall continue and remain in full force and effect as if no such forbearance or waiver had occurred.

XII. NOTICE

Any notice of other communication to be given under this Agreement shall be given by delivering
the same in writing to the following addressees:

For FCFC: For DD;

Director Supezintendent

Family and Children Fiest Council County of Summit Developmental
Summit County Combined General Health District Disabilities Board

1867 West Market St 89 E. Howe Ave,

Akren, Ohio 44313 Tallmadge, Ohio 44278

Phone: 330/812-3853 Phone: 330-634-8080

Fax: 330/923-1350 Fax: 330-634-8081

XIIl. HIPPA COMPLIANCE

To best serve children’s needs it may be necessary for the parties to exchange protected health
information about involved individuals. Therefore, in order to facilitate the exchange of such
protected health information within the boundaries of the law and in compliance with the privacy
regulations promulgated pursuant to the Health Insnrance Portability and Accountability Act, the
parties hereto incorporate by reference EXHIBIT A attached to this Agreement, which exhibit is
captioned “MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT FOR EXCHANGE OF PROTECTED HEALTH

INFORMATION.”

XIV. CONFIDENTIALITY

FCFC agrees that all information communicated to them with respect to clients of DD is confidential,
FCFC promises and agrees that they shall not disclose any such confidential information to any other
person unless specifically authorized to make any such disclosures, they shall do so only within the
limits and to the extent of that anthorization.

Page 3 of 3



XV.  RECORD ACCESS

FCFC shall provide access to any books, documents, papers and records which are directly pertinent to
the Agreement for the purpose of making audits, examination, excerpts and transcriptions. This access
shall be given to any federal, state, or county agency, the Comptroller General of the United States, or
any of their duly authorized representatives. FCFC shall maintain all required records for three years
after DD makes final payments and all other pending matters are closed.

XVI. HEADINGS

The headings in this Agreement are for convenience only, and will not be used to modify, limit or
extend any provision.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto do execute this agreement this day of
20

John Trunk Date
Superintendent
County of Summit Developmental Disabilities Board

Janice Houchins Date
Director
Family & Children First Council

L — U-13-]Y
Donna Skoda Date

Commissioner
Summit County Combined General Health District

Administrative/Fiscal Agent FCFC

Approved as to Form
o Skie. s0)2s/p

Asslstant Prosecuting Attomey

Page 4 of 4



BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

This Business Associate Agreement is entered into as of 1/1/2019 (Effective Date) by and between

Summit County Combined General Heaith District (Covered Entity) and County of Summit Board of
Developmental Disabilities (Business Associate) in conformance with the Health Insurance Portability

and Accountability Act of 1996, and its regulations (HIPAA).

RECITALS
Whereas, the Covered Entity has engaged the services of the Business Associate for or on behalf of the
Covered Entity;

Whereas, the Covered Entity may wish to disclose individually identifiable health information to the
Business Associate in the performance of services for or on behalf of the Covered Entity;

Whereas, such information may be Protected Health Information (PHI) as defined by the HIPAA Rules
promulgated in accordance with the Administrative Simplification provisions of HIPAA;

Whereas, the Parties agree to establish safeguards for the protection of such information;

Whereas, the Covered Entity and Business Associate desire to enter into this Agreement to address
certain requirements under the HIPAA Rules;

Now, therefore, the parties hereby agree as follows:

SECTION I - DEFINITIONS

1.1 “Breach” is defined as any unauthorized acquisition, access, use or disclosure of PHI, unless the
Covered Entity demonstrates that there is a low probability that the PHI has been compromised.
The definition of Breach excludes the following uses and disclosures:

1.1.1  Unintentional access by a Covered Entity or Business Associate in good faith and within
an employee’s course and scope of employment;

1.1.2  Inadvertent one time disclosure between Covered Entity or Business Associate work
force members (workforce member means employee, volunteer, trainees, etc. whether

paid or unpaid); and

1.1.3  The Covered Entity or Business Associate has a good faith belief that an unauthorized
person to whom the disclosure was made would not reasonably have been able to retain

the information.

1.2 “Business Associate” shall have the meaning given to such term under the HIPAA Rules,
including, but not limited to, 45 CFR §160.103.

1.3 “Covered Entity” shall have the meaning given to such term under the HIPAA Rules, including,
but not limited to, 45 CFR §160.103.

Page 1 of 2



1.4

1.5

1.6
1.7

1.8

1.9

1.10

1.11

1.12

1.13

1.14
1.15

116

117

“Data Aggregation” shall have the meaning given to such term under the HIPAA Rules, including
but not limited to, 45 CFR §164.501.

“Designated Record Set” shall have the meaning given to such term under the HIPAA Rules,
including, bat not fimited to 45 CFR §164.501.

“Bffective Date” shall be the Effective Date of this amended and restated Agreement.

“Electronic Protected Health Information” or "Electronic PHI” shall have the meaning given to
such term at 45 CFR §160.103, limited to information of the Covered Entity that the Business
Associate receives, accesses, maintains or transmits in electronic media on behalf of the Covered
Entity under the terms and conditions of this Business Associate Agreement.

“Health Care Operations” shall have the meaning given to such term under the HIPAA Raules,
including, but not limited to, 45 CFR §164.501.

“HIPAA Rules” shafl mean the Privacy, Security, Breach Notification, and Enforcement Rules
codified at 45 CFR Part 160 and Part 164.

“Individual” shall have the meaning given to such term in 45 CFR §160.103 and shall include a
person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45 CFR §164.502(g).

“Individually Identifigble Health Information” shall have the meaning given to such term under
the HIPAA Rules, including, but not limited to 45 CFR §160.103.

“Protected Health Information” or “PHI” means any information, whether oral or recorded in any
form or medium: (i) that relates to the past, present or future physical or mental condition of an
Individual; the provision of health care to an Individual; or the past, present or fature payment for
the provision of health care to an Individual; and (ii) that identifies the Individual or with respect
to which there is a reasonable basis to believe the information can be used to identify the
Individual, and shall have the meaning given to such term under the HIPAA Rules, including, but
not limited to, 45 CFR §164.501, (45 CFR §160.103 and §164.501).

“Protected Information” shall mean PHI provided by the Covered Entity to Business Associate or
created or received by Business Associate on Covered Entity’s behalf,

“Required by Law” shall have the meaning given to such phrase in 45 CFR §164.103.

“Secretary” shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Homan Services or his or
her designee.

“Security Incident” shall have the meaning given to such phrase in 45 CFR §164.304.

“Unsecured Protected Health Information” shall mean protected health information that is not
rendered unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals through the use of a
technology or methodology specified by the Secretary. (45 CFR §164.402).

Page 2 of 2



SECTION Il - OBLIGATIONS AND ACTIVITIES OF THE BUSINESS ASSOCIATE
The Business Associate agrees to the following;

2.1

22

23

24

25

2.6

2.7

2.8

29

Not 1o use or further disclose PHI otber than as permitted or required by this Business Associate
Agreement or as Required by Law:;

To use appropriate safeguards, and comply with Subpart C of 45 CFR Part 164 with respect to
Electronic PHI, to prevent use or disclosure of PHI other than as provided for by this Business

Associate Agreement;

To mitigate, to the extent practicable, any harmful effect that is known to the Business Associate
of a use or disclosure of PHI by the Business Associate in violation of the requirements of this

Business Associate Agreement;

To report to the Covered Batity any use or disclosure of PHI not provided for by this Business
Associate Agreement of which it becomes aware, inclading any Security Incident of which it

becomes aware;

In accordance with 45 CFR §§164.502(e)(1)(ii) and 164.308(b)(2), if applicable, ensure that any
agent, including a subcontractor, that creates, receives, maintains, or transmits PHI on behalf of
the Bosiness Associate agrees in writing to the same restrictions, conditions and requirements that

apply to the Business Associate with respect to such PHI:

To provide access, at the request of the Covered Entity, and in-the time and manner designated by
the Covered Entity, to PHI in a Designated Record Set, to the Covered Entity or, as directed by
the Covered Entity, to the Individual or the Individual’s designee as necessary to meet the
Covered Entity’s obligations under 45 CFR 164.524; provided, however, that this Section 2.6 is
applicable only to the extent the Designated Record Set is maintained by the Business Associate

for the Covered Entity;

To make any amendment(s) to PHI in a Designated Record Set that the Covered Entity directs or
agrees to pursuant to 45 CFR §164.526 at the request of the Covered Entity or an Individual, and
in the time and manner designated by the Covered Entity; provided, however, that this Section 2.7
is applicable only to the extent the Designated Record Set is maintained by the Business

Associate for the Covered Entity;

To make internal practices, books and records, including policies and procedures on PHI, relating
to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or received by the Business Associate
on behalf of, the Covered Entity available to the Covered Entity, or at the request of the Covered
Entity to the Sccretary, in a time and manoer designated by the Covered Entity or the Secretary,
for purposes of the Secretary’s determining the Covered Entity’s and the Business Associate’s
compliance with the HIPAA Rules;

To document such disclosures of PHI and information related to such disclosures as would be
required for the Covered Entity to respond to a request by an Individual for an accounting of
disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR 164.528;

Page3 of 3



2.10

211

212

2,13

214

2.15

2.16

To provide to the Covered Entity or an Individual, in a time and manner designated by the
Covered Entity, information collected in accordance with Section 2.9 of this Business Associate
Agreement, to permit the Covered Entity to respond to a request by an accounting of disclosures
of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR 164.528;

That if it creates, receives, maintains, or transmits any electronic PHI (other than
enrollment/disenrollment information and Summary Health Information, which are not subject to
these restrictions) on behalf of the covered entity, it will implement administrative, physical, and
technical safegnards that reasonably and appropriately protect the confidentiality, integrity, and
availability of the electronic protected health information, and it will ensure that any agents
(including subcontractors) to whom it provides such electronic PHI agrees to implement
reasonable and appropriate security measures to protect the information, The Business Associate
will report to the Covered Entity any Security Incident of which it becomes aware;

To ensure that the provisions of this Section are supported by reasonable and appropriate security
measures to the extent that the designees have access to electronic PHI,

To retain records related to the PHI hereunder for a period of six (6) years unless the Business
Associate Agreement is terminated prior thereto. In the event of termination of this Business
Associate Agreement, the provisions of Section V of this Business Associate Agreement shall
govern record retention, return or destruction;

Implement administrative safeguards in accordance with 45 CFR §164.308, physical safeguards
in aecordance with 45 CFR §164.310, technical safeguards in accordance with 45 CFR §164.312,
and policies and procedures in accordance with 45 CFR §164.316;

To notify the Covered Entity of a Breach of Unsecured PHI as soon as practicable, but in no case
later than 60 calendar days, after the discovery of such Breach in accordance with 45 CFR
§164.410. A Breach shall be treated as discovered as of the first day on which such Breach is
known, or by exercising reasonable diligence would have been known, to any person, other than
the person comymitting the Breach, who is an employee, officer, or agent of Business Associate.
The notification shall include, to the extent possible, the identification of each Individual whose
Unsecured PHI has been, or is reasonably believed by Business Associate to have been, accessed,
acquired, used, or disclosed during the Breach. In addition, Business Associate shall provide the
Covered Entity with any other available information that the Covered Entity is required to include
in the notification to the individual under 45 §SCFR 164.404(c); and

To the extent Business Associate is to carry ous one or more of the Covered Entity's obligations
under Subpart E of 45 CFR Part 164, comply with the requirements of Subpart E that apply to the
Covered Entity in the performance of such obligations.

SECTION III - THE PARTIES AGREE TO THE FOLLOWING PERMITTED USES AND

3l

DISCLOSURES BY THE BUSINESS ASSOCIATE:

Business Associate agrees to make uses and disclosures and requests for PHI consistent with the
Covered Entity’s minimum necessary policies and procedures.,

Page 4 of 4



3.2

33

Except as otherwise limited in this Business Associate Agreement, the Business Associate roay
use or disclose PHI to perform functions, activities or services for, or on behalf of, the Covered
Entity as specified in the Agreement, provided that such use or disclosure would not violate the
HIPAA Ruies if done by the Covered Entity; and,

Except as otherwige limited in this Business Associate Agreement, the Business Associate may:

a. Use for management and administration. Use PHI for the proper management and
administration of the Business Associate or to carry out the legal responsibilities of the

Business Associate; and,

b. Disclose for management and administration. Disclose PHI for the Proper management
and administration of the Business Associate or to carry out the legal responsibilities of the
Business Associate, provided that disclosures are Required by Law, or the Business Associate
obtains reasonable assurances from the person to whom the information is disclosed that it
will remain confidential and will be used or further disclosed only as Required by Law or for
the purposes for which it was disclosed to the person, and the person notifies the Business
Associate of any instances of which it is aware in which the confidentiality of the information

has been breached.

SECTIONIV ~ NOTICE OF PRIVACY PRACTICES

4.1

The Covered Entity shall () provide the Business Associate with the notice of privacy practices
that the Covered Entity produces in accordance with 45 CFR §164.520, as well as any changes to
such notice; (b) provide the Business Associate with any changes in, or revocation of, permission
by an Individual to use or disclose PHI, if such changes affect the Business Associate’s permitted
or required uses and disclosures; (¢) notify the Business Associate of any restriction to the use or
disclosure of PHI that the Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR §164.522, 10
the extent that such restrictions may affect the Business Associate’s nse or disclosure of PHI; and
(d) not request the Business Associate to use or disclose PHI in any manner that would not be
permissible under the Privacy Standards if done by the Covered Entity, except as set forth in

Section 3.2 above,

SECTION V - BREACH NOTIFICATION REQUIREMENTS

5.1

With respect to any Breach, the Covered Entity shall notify each individual whose Unsecured
Protected Health Information has been, or is reasonably believed by the Covered Entity to have
been, accessed, acquired, vsed, or disclosed as a result of such Breach, except when law
enforcement requires a delay pursnant to 45 CFR §164.412:

a. Without unreasonable delay and in no case Jater than 60 days after discovery of a Breach,
b. By notice in plain language including and to the exteat possible:
1) A brief description of what happened, including the date of the Breach and the date
of the discovery of the Breach, if known;
2) A description of the types of Unsecured Protected Health Information that were
involved in the Breach (such as whether full name, social security number, date of

Page 5 of 5



birth, home address, account number, diagnosis, disability code, or other types of
information were involved);

3) Any steps individuals should take to protect themselves from potential harm resulting
from the Breach;

4) A brief description of what the Covered Entity involved is doing to investigate the
Breach, to mitigate harm to individuals, and to protect against any further Breaches;
and,

5) Contact procedures for individuals to ask guestions or learn additional information,
which shall include a toll-free telephone number, an e-mail address, web site, or
postal address.

c. Use a method of notification that meets the requirements of 45 CFR §164.404(d).
d. Provide notice to the media when required under 45 CFR §164.406 and to the Secretary

pursuant to 45 CFR §164.408.

SECTION VI - TERM AND TERMINATION

6.1

6.2

Term, The term of this Business Associate Agreement shall be effective as of the date set forth
above in the first paragraph and shall terminate when all of the PHI provided by the Covered
Entity to the Business Associate, or created or received by the Business Associate on behalf of
the Covered Entity, is destroyed or remmed to the Covered Entity, or, if it is infeasible to return
or destroy PHI, protections are extended to such information,' in accordance with the termination

provisions in this Section.

Termination for Cavse. Upon the Covered Entity’s knowledge of a material breach of this
Business Associate Agreement by the Business Associate, the Covered Entity shall provide an
opportunity for the Business Associate to cure the breach or end the violation. The Covered
Entity shall terminate this Business Associate Agreement and the Services Agreement if the
Business Associate does not cure the breach or end the violation within the time specified by the
Covered Entity, or immediately terminate this Business Associate Agreement if cure is not

possible.

If the Business Associate fails to cure a breach for which cure is reasonably possible, the Covered
Entity may take action to cure the breach, including but not limited to obtaining an injunction that

will prevent further improper use or disclosure of PHI.

Upon the Business Associate’'s knowledge of a material breach of this Business Associate
Agreement by the Covered Entity, the Business Associate shall provide an opportunity for the
Covered Entity to cure the breach or end the violation. The Business Associate shall terminate
this Business Associate Agreement if the Covered Entity does not cure the breach or end the
violation within the time specified by the Business Associate, or immediately terminate this
Business Associate Agreement if the Covered Entity has breached a material term of this
Business Associate Apreement if cure is not reasonably possible.

Page 6 of 6



6.3

Effect of Termination.

a. Return or Destruction of PHI. Except as provided in Section 6.3(b), npon termination of
this Business Agreement, for any reason, the Business Associate shall return, or if agreed to
by the Covered Entity, destroy all PHI received from the Covered Entity, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of the Covered Entity. This provision shall
apply to PHI that is in the possession of subcontractors or agents of the Business Associate.
The Business Associate shall retzin no copies of PHI.

b. Retwrn or Destruction of PHI Infeasible. In the event that the Business Associate
determines that returning or destroying PHI is infeasible, the Business Associate shall provide
to the Covered Entity notification of the conditions that make return or destruction infeasible.
Upon mutual agreement of the parties that retum or destruction of the PHI is infeasible, the
Business Associate shall extend the protections of this Business Associate Agreement to such
PHI and limit further vses and disclosures of such PHI to those purposes that make the return
or destruction infeasible, for so long as the Business Associate maintains such PHL. In
addition, the Buziness Associate shall continue to use appropriate safeguards and comply
with Subpart C of 45 CFR Part 164 with respect to Electronic PHI to prevent use or
disclosure of the PHI, for as long as the Business Associate retains the PHI

SECTION VII - GENENERAL PROVISIONS

7.1

1.2

73

7.4

1.5

Regulatory references. A reference in this Agreement to the HIPAA Rules or a section in the
HIPAA Rules means that Rule or Section as in effect or as amended from time to time,

Compliance with law. In connection with its performance under this Agreement, Business
Associate shall comply with all applicable laws, including but not limited to laws protecting the

privacy personal information about individuals.

Amendment. The Parties agree to take such action as is necessary to amend this Business
Associate Agreement from time to time as is necessary for compliance with the requirements of
the HIPAA Rules and any other applicable law.

Survival. The respective rights and obligations of Business Associate under Section Two of this
Business Associate Agreement shall survive the termination of this Agreement.

Interpretation. Any ambiguity in this Business Associate Agreement shall be resolved to permit
Covered Entity to comply with the HIPAA Rules.

Page 7 of 7



In Witness Whereof, the Parties hereto have duly executed this Agreement as of the Effective Date as
defined here above.

Coverjed Entity Business Associate

By: Q/k,\ YL — By:

Printed Name: Donna Skoda Printed Name: John Trunk
Title: _ Health Commissioner, SCPH Title: Superintendent, CSBDD

Date: il’ [3-—[’87 Date:

Approv as_to Form
UM% iof23)I3

Assistant Prosecuting Attomey

Page 8 of 8



Attachment #3

Wd ¥2:2 61L02/01/)

SaRIuIIOD SaiuIoes 3 eoueud Arenuey T T
a3 Aq jeaosdde 1oy papuswiwiosay 125989 CEgErSico
LSTLVS'0S §  LSTLYS0S  §
IVALOV Lasang
@o1ISK'e)  §  (ZTH'60E'9) 900°€LT $  (9.8%16F) §
%E"0 159877  §  TSOOLO'IL $§  SOESOETIL §  °%L9 96IISLY §  SIS'E0L'S9 §  TILPSHOL §
%9°01- (11£°98) 16£°506 089°818 %9'06 88691¢ TI0'€EE 000°0S€
%Y He 966°L8 #00°891 000°95T %6'1E #90°601 9€6°TET 000°THE
%9'8 SOTTE 817°TEE €2€°€9¢ %E01 193743 86900€ 0sT'sEE
%8 - (s62°9) $6T'8El 000°ZE1 %L'TE LIT'EY £€8'88 000°ZE1
%L'8 65Tl 9IT0ET SLY‘TH] %0'8 768°1 90L°1C 009°¢T
%6°L LOSSY £bL€9S 0SZ°Z19 %S 9T £TS0LL 0¥ TLY ST6'THY
%L9- (s81°8pL°1) 918°T00°8¢ 1€9°%5T9C %€0- (T9¢°t6) T9EP0S 8T 0000182
%E'S S65 VI 8LL'EYO'T CLE'SSTT %9'b< €TT6SL LSO'LEV Y 08Z°961°C
%L'T1- (98¢°626) 850°106'8 TLYTLEL %¥'0- (LyL'LE) 0€8°THE'6 £80°F0€'6
%I'S +0T'L1 oFL'61E 0S6°9£€ %8°1T 66889 15¥'9ve 05€°s1€
%LLE €61°19¢€ OF0°L6S 6£T°856 %8'LY SEL‘REE $8T69¢€ 0T0°80L
%6'S 1€549¢ 019°650°6 IF1%79°6 %L'81 108°T19°T 0Lt866°0 1LTT19°8
%I'8 8E9T9L'T  §  IELVIEST  § 69€9L9°1T %S'L 6SVLTV'T  §  ELV9SYLT  §  Te6't80'6l  §
%0°'T- (699°679) §  0SSSTYSY §  TI88°S66F9 $ %S0 (989°7€€) §  I7S0L8G9 §  SegEps'sy §
%C 1vTl- (€00°58L) 9T'8r8 £PT'E9 %9851~ (6zt°9c1) 62¥'TTT 00098
%0°0 (#65°6) ¥65°6 - %0°0 (T15°60) TIS'6T -
%0°69C- (869°TTt) 808°6LS OTILST %L ¥8 £96°08¢€ LEO'69 000°0SY
%8°LE S£9°619 LOLYIOT 0V°LT91 %S 9¢- (969°95+) 969°90L°T 000°0$T°T
%L'T 869°1£€ LYOPSTTI SPL'S8HTI %6'T £7E9SE LSOPHETI 000°10€T1
%L 0 (LoL'6SE)  §  880°TTOIS §  I8ETY90S %6°0- (SSE°LVP)  § 0610061 §  SE89SKIS  §
ONINIVINZY ~ ONINIVINAH TVNLIV 1anand ONINIVINTY  ONINIVINZH TYNLOV rLanang
Lansang 1Laoang aLx TVANNY Lanang ranang arx TYNNNY
% QLA $ LA LT0T L102 % QLA $ LA 8107 8107
| LIOT/TE/TT STOT/LE/TT

LTOT ANV 8107 ‘T€ YATINIDIA AAANT SUVAX THL 404

HIONVIVE NN ANV STANLIANAIXA “AONTATH 40 XAVININAS FALLVAVINOD
ddvod aa ALNNOD LININAS

HONVIVE ANNA ONIANA
SHANLIANAdXH ‘SSHT
dNNTATY ‘S1'1d

HONVIVE ANNA DNINNIOAG

STANLIANTIIXT ANV SAANIATT LAN
SHANLIANAIXA TV.ILOL
SINFWHAOYdII ALIIIONd TvId
INAWIINOA
SASNAIXA YIHIO
DNISLLYAAQY
STV INTI
SALLITILN
SLSOD AIVOIada
SHIIAYAS LOVILNOD LOTIIANI
SHDIAYAS LOVIINOD LOFHIA
DNINIVYL ANV THAVYL
SAITddNS
SLIIANAL S9A0TdNA

SHIAVIVS
STUNLIANAIX T ONILVIAdO

HANHATE TVIOL
SLAIEIDdY ¥9H1O
SANNATA
SHOIAMHS LOVILINOD
SINVID
SINFNHSINIINITA

SHXVL ALIddOdd
ANNTATT ONILVIAdO



‘uefd sani[1oB) sAnEIINE Ue Jo tonednue ayy yim Surpuads ssof AJjeiouan
"s)jnsax jo3png-1opun oy Jog uosear Areurd oy st saseyomd sxempiey 13ndwod pue sndwos ssa|
‘spoddns I pue sjueinsuoo Jo sesle ayy ur s3uaes ay) jo Ajuofew € qym pajespnq uer Suipuads $S9[ [jRISAQ

“Surpuads 128pnq-1opun [[2I2A0 03 UOBIPPE Ul
pajedionue uey) sose3 Suruaddey saoiaes uoyenodsue) Jo N0 UoRIsuLn oy Yim suedal S[dIyaA pue aSesn [onJ 108png-Ispury

"90URINSTIL Jey) JO 1500 21) SUIPISHO S1eqol 93)s Uonesusdwo) SIONIOA € pue /[ (z ut Juswded Jopuiq
SWI-3UO [ENINIA] [BIIPITA] 21} 0] 1IPAID RT(T © “51500 AIe[es Pa3oSpnq Uer) 1940 JO 103130 J09IIP B 218 S}[Nsal joSpng-1pus)

-poredionue uey) soed 19358] B
18 Juawko[dws sAnEwd)[e punoy sasko[dwe e SuIaWI UonIsuen o yim Louaiedsuen Jo 100330 1001 © Si S}NSaI 108png Moy
‘sjosse

de10s JO PIPAdU-UN JO aes JY) Woy sp2ad0oxd Joysiy pue Juswiked ssau[[am [BUOHIPPE UE 0) onp A[a31e 128pnq uey Jonag

‘spoddns sAneuI)R pRjURIS
I URIP[IY> S PIeOq $I0IAIOG USIPTIYY) Y) JO SPasul 10J PAJeoo[[e SIoAlRM UL 952100 pajedionueun ue o) anp 13pnqg-1opun

*Jo3pnqg 9y} ur PapN[OUL J0U SeM JBT) JUBID) YN0 & WdISKS-OIA € JO
UOLIpPE S pue ‘stustuasInguiial juesS moin) S dioT] yim souelsfiip Suruiy £ 17 & anp 108pnq Uey) 10)5q 219 S)[NSAI [ENOY

‘SHUSIUISINQUIISI PIBOIPIA] JO SBAIR I3YJO Ul SIIO3P 198pnq 39530 03 pad[ay
YoTYM pajeSpnq Ury) 19319 319M UOPRI[IOU00OI DT IOAIEA [ENUUE UE PUE SJUSWD[AS J1pny Hodsy 18507 WOy S)[Nsal 2oy

SJUELIEA puj 1694

000°11 “Juowidinbs Sunjiomisu 10y $99§ SUISULSY] pUE dOUBUDIUIRW [ENUUY
00T°LTF “JusWasINg W) ApaMenb (YA SWIB[) SANRNSIUIWPY PIEOIPSIA
00661 $ Jusmesmquuins Apepenb juein yino & wiaisAs-nna
TPUOIA JURLIN)
(papunoy)

8107 ‘I YAAWADIA AAANT HINOW JH.L 404
SINAWALVLS TVIDNVNIA OL SILON
@avOod ad ALNNOD LININAS

uawaoxduy Apodord [eay

Juawdmbyg

ISOOIAIOG JOBNUCY) J92IPU]

:sarpddng

:sjiyausg 2akorduyg

:SoTIR[Eg

Seanyipuadxy

811000y 1Y

1S901AIRG JOBIUO))

SjuBIDy
'SIUSWSINQUITSY
PNueATY
1S10BIIUO)) 201AISS 1021IPU] z

1SJUBID) I

PNUIAIY



SUMMIT COUNTY DD BOARD
SUMMARY OF CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
SCHDULE OF OTHER FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Gifts and Donations Fund

Fund Balance, 1/1/2018 $ 182,563
Add Revenue:

Donations 2,033

Interest income 671

2,704

Less Expenditures 51,735

Ending Fund Balance, 12/31/18 $ 133,532

Permanent Improvement Fund

Fund Balance, 1/1/2018 $ 229,405

Add Revenue:
Day program portion of the 2014 cost report audit settlement 3,078,158
Flow-thru DODD Capital Assistant funds 481,320
3,559,478

Less Expenditures:
Flow-thru DODD Capital Assistant funds to SHDC 481,320

Ending Fund Balance, 12/31/18 $ 3,307,563

Escrow Fund - Bid Deposits
Ending Fund Balance, 12/31/18 $ 6,602

* No activity



Attachment #4

Summit County Developmental Disabilities Board

TOPIC SUMMARY REPORT
TOPIC ISSUE/CONCERN RECOMMENDATION
The disposal of Summit DD has vehicles that are That Summit DD's Board approve of
vehicles that are no no longer needed for the the disposal of certain vehicles in
longer needed to transportation of person served accordance with ORC 307.12
transport person and would like to dispose of them.
served

SUPPORTING DATA FOR RECOMMENDATION

Service Area: Transportation

As a result of Summit DD’s transition out of being a provider for transportation services, Summit DD
has vehicles that are no longer needed. In accordance with Ohio Revised Code Section 307.12,
Summit DD will either sell or donate the below list of vehicles.

Vehicle Type Mileage
TO5 2005 F250 Ford Pickup 44,075
T06 2015 F250 Ford Pickup 2,655
105 2008 C-2 Freightliner 134,409
107 2008 C-2 Freightliner 134,540
111 2008 C-2 Freightliner 132,726
289 2008 C-2 Freightliner 144,605
SV20 2011 E350 Ford Van 75,286

Sv24 2011 E350 Ford Startrans 103,075
Sv25 2011 E350 Ford Startrans 120,614

299 2014 E450 Ford Eldorado 53,307
300 2014 E450 Ford Eldorado 64,501
301 2015 E450 Ford Eldorado 49,394
302 2015 E450 Ford Eldorado 60,841
303 2015 E450 Ford Eldorado 47,436
304 2015 E350 Ford Eldorado 40,077

305 2015 E350 Ford Eldorado 36,966
Recommended for approval by the

January Finance & Facilities Committee

Submitted By: _Drew Williams For: Superintendent/Assistant Superintendent
__X___ Finance & Facilities Committee
Date: __1/2019 Services & Supports Committee

HR/LR Committee




INVOICE

Attachment #5

OACB
73 E Wilson Bridge Road, Suite Bl Date Invoice #
Worthlngton’ OH 43085 12/4/2018 2019Dues-77
Bill To
Summit CBDD
89 E. Howe Road
Tallmadge, OH 44278
P.O. No.
Description Amount
2019 OACB Membership Dues 92.700.00
Thank you for your support! Please include the invoice number on your checks payable to
OACB. Total $92,700.00
Payments/Credits
Balance Due $92,700.00




RECEIVED

December 20, 2018 PY

John Trunk JAN -3 2019 O / ‘
Summit County Board of DD o A B
B0 E Hone Ave SUPERINTENDENT'S OFFICE C
Tallmadge, Ohio 44278 SUMMIT DD DEVELOPMENTAL

Dear Superintendent Trunk, DISABILITIES

On behalf of the board of trustees and staff of the Ohio Association of County Boards of DD, thank you for being a
member of Ohio’s premier trade association for developmental disability professionals in 2018.

Over the past 12 months, we have accomplished a great deal together:

*  We led the way on several major legislative and policy initiatives that had an immediate, direct, positive impact
on county board operations, including the overhaul of Ohio's broken waiver waiting list process and the passage
of a bill guaranteeing a full year of service credit for 9- and 10-month county board employees in the state’s
public employee retirement system.

»  We helped to increase the quality, sustainability, and availability of services for people with developmental
disabilities across the state by working together on many local challenges facing county boards, including issues
related to financial forecasting, individual service planning, abuse prevention, crisis communications, early
intervention, and community integration, among others.

We collaborated and planned for our collective future at more trainings, regional meetings, and forums
throughout the year than ever before, bringing together current and future leaders at our year-long executive
development serigs, three SSA Forums, more than two dozen regional support meetings, and Ohio's two largest
annual professional development conferences—the Spring Conference and the Annual Convention—the latter
of which hosted more than 1,000 attendees over a three-day period.

While we accomplished many great things together in 2018, we know that—as in years past—the year ahead holds even
greater promise. We are in the midst of finalizing our agenda for the incoming administration of Governor-elect Mike
DeWine and the newly-elected 133" General Assembly, which will include the introduction and consideration of the
state’s next two-year budget. We are creating new and exciting content for upcoming professional development events,
and have already scheduled technical assistance appointments throughout the first quarter of the year across the state.

None of this is possible without your continued support as members of OACB. As is customary, your membership dues
invoice is enclosed. Please note that — per a vote of the membership at the Delegate Assembly in November — all
counties have had their enrollment numbers updated from 2006 levels to 2018 levels for the purpose of assessing
membership dues this year. The enclosed invoice reflects the updated dues amounts that have been distributed and
discussed over the past several months.

If you have any questions or require any additional information prior to processing your membership dues payment,
please do not hesitate to contact me at the information below. It has been a pleasure to serve you in 2018—we look
forward to working alongside you in the coming year to continue supporting people with developmental disabilities and
their families.

Sincerely,

o

BRIDGET GARGAN
Executive Director

Ohio Association of County Boards of DD
73 E. Wilson Bridge Rd. Ste B-1, Worthington, OH 43085
T (614) 431-0616 | www.oacbdd.org



Attachment #6
Summit County Developmental Disabilities Boara

TOPIC SUMMARY REPORT
TOPIC ISSUE/CONCERN RECOMMENDATION
Review of direct Board employee who is also That the Board adopt the
service contract to employed with a contract agency recommendations of the Ethics
assure ethical of the county board. Committee.

standards are not
violated.

SUPPORTING DATA FOR RECOMMENDATION

Affidavit of Board employee Yolanda Mahoney, who is also employed by Total Education Solutions
(TES), a contract agency of Summit DD.

Ms. Mahoney has certified by affidavit that her specific, secondary employment situation meets the
conditions specified in ORC 5126.033.

The Ethics Committee has determined that the direct service contract meets the conditions specified
in ORC 5126.033.

The Ethics Committee recommends that the Board continue to participate in its contract with

Connections in Ohio.

Recommended for approval by the
December 2018 Ethics Committee.

Submitted By: _John Trunk For: ____ Superintendent/Assistant Superintendent
Finance & Facilities Committee

Date: _December 2018 Services & Supports Committee
HR/LR Committee

X __ Ethics Committee




@ summit pp

ETHICS COMMITTEE MEETING
December 11, 2018

Committee Members: John Trunk, Lisa Kamlowsky,

Tom Quade, Denise Ricks, Allyson V. Lee

The meeting commenced at 6:58 p.m. The role and purpose of Ethics Committee was
reviewed.

Review of Direct Service Contracts

Yolanda Mahoney is a Summit DD employee who is also employed by Total Education
Solutions, a contract Agency of Summit DD. The committee reviewed the affidavit
submitted by Ms. Mahoney regarding her specific employment circumstances and the
requirements under ORC 5126.033.

Recommendations to the Board

The Ethics Committee finds that Ms. Mahoney has attested that all of the conditions
specified in ORC 5126.033 have been met. Mrs. Lee moved that the committee
recommend to the Board that the Board adopt the recommendations of the Ethics
Committee. Mrs. Ricks seconded the motion; the motion passed unanimously.

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 7:01 p.m.

89 East Howe Road, Tallmadge, Ohio 44278-1099 } SummitDD.org 330.634.8000



@ summit bp

MINUTES - combined work session and regular meeting
Tuesday, December 11, 2018

Summit County Board of Developmental Disabilities

s

PMIRNRE

Attachment #7

Page 1 of 15

Tuesday, December 11, 2018

5:30 p.m.

The combined work session and regular monthly meeting of the Summit County
Developmental Disabilities Board was held on Tuesday, December 11, 2018 at the Summit
DD administrative offices located at 89 East Howe Road, Tallmadge, Ohio 44278. The work

session convened at 5:31 p.m.

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT

Randy Briggs, Board President

Meghan Wilkinson, Board Vice President
Denise Ricks, Board Secretary

Tom Quade
Allyson V. Lee
Dave Dohnal
Tami Gaugler

ALSO PRESENT
John 1. Trunk, Superintendent
Billie Jo David, Director of Communications
& MUI
Holly Brugh, Director of SSA & Children’s
Services
Lynn Sargi, Director of Human Resources
Maggi Albright, Recording Secretary

Joe Eck, Director of Labor Relations &
Risk Management

Mira Pozna, Director of Fiscal

Russ DuPlain, Director of IT, Records
& Facilities

Drew Williams, Director of Community
Supports & Development

L. SUMMIT 2020 QUALITY OF LIFE PROJECT CONTRACT

Summit 2020 Quality of Life Project is a collaboration between Summit County Job &
Family Services (SCDJFS) and nonprofit health and social services agencies to serve
the most vulnerable citizens of Summit County. Summit 2020 has been in place since
2002 and is a priority of County Executive Ilene Shapiro with oversight of the project
delegated to the Social Services Advisory Board (SSAB). The contract is managed by
the Summit County Combined General Health District with SCDIFS, Summit DD,
Summit County ADM Board and Summit County Children’s Services Board (CSB)
sharing equally in the cost of the Agreement. The primary indicators and initiatives

are:
Economic stability and prosperity
Early childhood

Older adults

Health and health disparities

Government efficiencies and effectiveness



Page 2 of 15

ﬂ °
W summit

MINUTES ~ combined work session and regular meeting
Tuesday, December 11, 2018

II.

WO RK SE SSION (continued)

SUMMIT 2020 QUALITY OF LIFE PROJECT CONTRACT (continued)

Project goals include:
o Collecting data for 22 indicators to measure the quality of health and social
services in Summit County
» Developing plans and goals to improve the quality of services, as measured by
the 22 indicators
Implementing plans to strengthen public health and social service infrastructure
e Strengthening collaborations between public health and social service provider
and systems
It will be a priority of the directors of the three levy funded agencies (Summit DD,
ADM Board, CSB) to integrate more agency priorities into the Summit 2020 Plan and
to assure the Plan reflects more initiatives of those agencies. Mrs. Lee asked if the
initiatives are already in place, how are Summit DD’s interests incorporated into the
process. Mr. Trunk replied as an example, there have been discussions around overall
health and fitness by decreasing BMIs and seeking grants around addressing these
issues for people with disabilities. As measures are documented, all citizens of the
community are being considered and data is being shared among the social services
agencies. Mr. Quade stated as the health department compiles data, sharing the data
is part of the charge to ensure disparities are identified and addressed. Summit DD
collects so much data that can be folded into the work that already exists. Mr. Trunk
mentioned that he met with the data analysts for this project and they were very
receptive to collecting Summit DD’s data and sharing information. Staff are taking
advantage of the opportunity to be part of these discussions. The request is to renew
funding support for Summit 2020 for the two-year period of January 1, 2019 through
December 31, 2020, for the total contract amount not to exceed $65,000. Funds are
available in the budget and the Summit 2020 contract has been recommended for
approval by the December Finance & Facilities Committee.

SUMMIT COUNTY FAMILY & CHILDREN FIRST COUNCIL (SCFCFC) CONTRACT -
SHARED FUNDING POOL

Family & Children First Councils must develop a county-specific Service Coordination
Mechanism (SCM), which serves as the guiding document for coordination of services
in the county. The purpose of the SCM is to streamline and coordinate existing
government services for families seeking services for their children age birth through
21 and to ensure that eligible families have access to service coordination. Developed
through the SCM, a team of professional from child-serving agencies in Summit
County meet weekly to:
¢ Review and monitor requests for community-based services for children with
multi-system needs
o Offer case consultation from a multi-system perspective to staff from any
agency serving a complex youth/family
e Refer families for wrap around/service coordination



@ summit

Page 3 of 15

MINUTES - combined work session and regular meeting
Tuesday, December 11, 2018

II.

III.

WORK SESSION (continued)

SUMMIT COUNTY FAMILY & CHILDREN FIRST COUNCIL (SCFCFC) CONTRACT -
SHARED FUNDING POOL (continued)

e Review individual cases that are in need of more restrictive placement settings,
such as residential treatment and monitoring youth in residential treatment
e Issuing recommendations and/or offering alternatives to better serve youth and
families
So far in 2018, there were 60 referrals for wrap around/service coordination, 20
referrals for case consultation, 56 funding requests for community-based services and
13 funding requests for out of home placement. The request is to continue to
participate in the shared pool agreement for the period January 1, 2019 through
December 31, 2019, in an amount not to exceed $110,700. Funds for this contract
will be pooled from CSB in the amount of $171,245, the ADM Board in the amount of
$145,431, Juvenile Court in the amount of $131,084 and Summit DD in the amount of
$110,700. Summit DD will have two staff members who serve as part of the SCFCFC
and will have access to bring any Board-eligible child/family case to the committee for
support and funding recommendations. Funds are available in the budget and the
Summit County Family & Children First Council contract has been recommended for
approval by the December Finance & Facilities and Services & Supports Committees.

SUMMIT DD 2019 ACTION PLAN

Ohio Administrative Code requires each county board to adopt, by Board resolution, a
strategic plan. The Board approved Summit DD’s 2019-2021 Long Range Plan (LRP)
at its October meeting. The LRP updated the Agency Mission, Vision and values, as
well as the three-year goals of the organization. The 2019 Action Plan outlines the
action items Summit DD will carry out during the first year of the LRP. 2019 action
items include:
Goal 1: To ensure quality services while we cultivate opportunities for people to feel
included.
o Identify outcomes that are meaningful to people
» Complete a provider engagement survey and identify priorities for improvement
e Participate in the Provider Partnership Pilot Expansion Project and implement
recommendations
e Share success stories of inclusion
Goal 2: To empower an engaged workforce that achieve the best outcomes for
people we support.
o Complete a thoughtful analysis of our organizational structure to ensure our
collective work is aligned with the achievement of the LRP
o Identify short-term diversity priorities, making Summit DD reflective of the
community we serve
o Complete an employee engagement survey and identify priorities for
improvement



Page 4 of 15

@ summit

MINUTES - combined work session and regular meeting
Tuesday, December 11, 2018

I1I.

IV.

WORK SESSION (continued)

SUMMIT DD 2019 ACTION PLAN (continued)

» Develop an approach to training and development that ensures employees have
the skills and knowledge needed to achieve the goals of the Agency.

Goal 3: To ensure that our system is sustainable for future generations.

e Implement facilities use plan

o Prioritize non-Medicaid expenditures
A Public Hearing was held on November 27t to obtain feedback on the 2019 Action
Plan. The 2019 Action Plan has been recommended for approval by the November
HR/LR, Services & Supports and Finance & Facilities Committees.

DEPARTMENT OF JOBS & FAMILY SERVICES (DJFS) CONTRACT FOR ONSITE
ASSISTANCE

The contract with JFS to provide onsite assistance has been a collaborative partnership
since 2013. Summit DD receives onsite assistance from a DIFS caseworker who
maintains an office at the Summit DD administration building and provides assistance
with Medicaid enrollment, Medicaid waivers, Healthy Start and food assistance
programs. Individuals, families and staff are able to work directly with the DIFS
caseworker at Summit DD. This allows the caseworker to address special issues and
barriers that can sometimes delay Medicaid enroliment. During the first six months of
2018, the DIFS caseworker supported an average of 33 people a month relative to
Medicaid eligibility, as pertains to DODD waivers, and nine additional people with
community Medicaid. The caseworker also averages about 70 phone calls and e-mails
monthly. The request is to renew a contract with DIFS for the period January 1, 2019
through December 31, 2019, in an amount not to exceed $78,000. Reimbursement
would be made to DIFS on a monthly basis. Funds are available in the budget and
the contract with DJFS has been recommended for approval by the November Finance
& Facilities and Services & Supports Committees.

NORTH EAST OHIO NETWORK (NEON) CONTRACT - FAMILY ENGAGEMENT
PROGRAM

Summit DD contracts with NEON to act as the fiscal administrator of the Family
Engagement Program (FEP) and to act as a flow through for reimbursement of funds
to individuals and families for this program. The FEP allows individuals ages 0-22,
without Medicaid waivers, to access up to $1,800 annually to use for participation in
activities that enhance their lives. Some of these activities may include: summer
camp, community programs, school activities, therapy, specialized equipment and
technology supports. So far in 2018 over 700 families have accessed the FEP, with
the majority of funds paying for community-based camps (112), specialized camps
(156), community classes/clubs (128) and adaptive equipment (45). Families pay for
the goods/services up front and, upon an approved receipt, are then reimbursed for
the expenses.



@ summit bp

Page 5 of 15

MINUTES - combined work session and regular meeting
Tuesday, December 11, 2018

VI.

WORK SESSION (continued)

NORTH EAST OHIO NETWORK (NEON) CONTRACT — FAMILY ENGAGEMENT
PROGRAM (continued)

NEON charges a fee of $12.50 per transaction, for the total administrative fee not to
exceed $10,000. The total amount allocated for the FEP if $585,000. The NEON
contract also includes Summit DD’s annual dues of $6,000. The request is to renew a
contract with NEON for the period January 1, 2019 through December 31, 2019, in an
amount not to exceed $600,000. The 2019 budget for the FEP remains the same as
2018, however, the total contract amount is increased by $70,000 over the 2018
contract amount as a result of reallocating unused respite dollars budgeted elsewhere.
Funds are available in the budget and the NEON contract has been recommended for
approval by the November Finance & Facilities and Services & Supports Committees.

ORIANA HOUSE CONTRACT — ALTERNATIVE ENVIRONMENT PROGRAM (AEP)

Summit DD has partnered with the Oriana House since 2012 to provide a pretrial
diversion option for individuals with developmental disabilities who are facing criminal
charges in lieu of awaiting trial/disposition in the Summit County Jail. The contract
ensures the availability of two male beds for eligible individuals in a restrictive,
structured residential environment. Funds of $50,000 per year support guaranteed
placement of eligible individuals into these beds. 243 bed days are projected for
2019. In 2016, the number of beds was reduced from four to two and that has
proven to be sufficient. This contract also supports services provided to individuals
while they are in the AEP, which can include case management, crisis counseling,
social skills group, medication compliance, recreation, hygiene and nutrition. The cost
per day is $185.18. In 2018, four people utilized two beds with varying lengths of
stay. Two of the four people were eventually convicted and sentenced to long-term
prison stays. The request is to renew a contract with Oriana House for the period
January 1, 2019 through December 31, 2019, in an amount not to exceed $95,000.
Mrs. Lee asked if the cost of this contract is negotiable. Mr. Briggs stated there is a
methodology for what is charged and the cost is to make beds available. Many times
beds are not available and this contract ensures that beds will be available if/fwhen
they are needed. Mr. Trunk added the overall cost of this contract has gone down
due to reduction in bed use. Mrs. Brugh noted that rates were negotiated and
reduced last year and mentioned that the contract covers staffing costs, housing and
services while individuals are utilizing the program. Funds are available in the budget
and the contract with Oriana House has been recommended for approval by the
November Finance & Facilities and Services & Supports Committees.



Page 6 of 15

@ summit bp

MINUTES — combined work session and regular meeting
Tuesday, December 11, 2018

VII.

VIIL.

WO RK SESSION (continued)

SUCCESS4KIDZ (S4K) CONTRACT

Summit DD has partnered with Success4Kidz to provide evidence-based consultative
therapy services to families since 2007. S4K supports Summit DD’s Early Intervention
(EI) program by:
e Participating in evaluations to determine eligibility for EI services
¢ Meeting weekly as a team with Help Me Grow (HMG) service coordinators and
Developmental Specialists (DS) to ensure families are supported by one primary
service provider who is backed by a team of support professionals
¢ Adding OT and PT staff to the team of professionals who can serve as the
primary service provider. This allows the team to select from not only the DS
and Speech Therapist but also the OT and PT to give the family the best fit
So far in 2018, S4K has averaged 195 visits per month and have provided 1,759 visits
in the past nine months, which is an increase of 53 visits over the same period last
year. S4K acts as the primary service provider for 58 families and the secondary
service provider for 83 families. S4K also serves nine 3-5 year olds and collaborates
with the CPI Program to help promote inclusion in childcare centers. The request is to
renew a contract with S4K for the period January 1, 2019 through December 31,
2019, in an amount not to exceed $456,500. Costs are billed hourly at $75 or
$18.75/unit of service. Funds are available in the budget and the contract with
Success4Kidz has been recommended for approval by the November Finance &
Facilities and Services & Supports Committees and was discussed again at both
committees in December to review the additional $6,500 for the CPI program.

SUMMIT COUNTY SHERIFF CONTRACT

Summit DD has partnered with the Summit County Sheriff since 2013 to provide a
detective to investigate criminal cases, including conducting relevant interviews,
searching for suspects, gathering evidence, obtaining warrants, grand jury/courtroom
testimony, take initial criminal notifications, complete initial police reports for Major
Unusual Incidents (MUIs) of a criminal nature and to provide an assigned deputy and
vehicle to patrol both inside and outside Summit DD facilities. The detective will also
coordinate with the Summit County Prosecutor’s office and other law enforcement
jurisdictions, as needed, to educate the community concerning criminal cases involving
individuals with developmental disabilities. To date, there have been 23 arrests (14
misdemeanors and 9 felonies). Since the collaboration began in 2013, there have
been 67 misdemeanor arrests and 52 felony arrests that led to 52 indictments. There
is also up to $4,000 built into the contract to purchase security services for events
held at Summit DD by external entities, such as dances and Special Olympics. The
request is to renew a contract with the Summit County Sheriff for the period January
1, 2019 through December 31, 2019, in an amount not to exceed $239,660. Funds
are available in the budget and the contract with the Summit County Sheriff has been
recommended for approval by the November Finance & Facilities and Services &
Supports Committees.



Page 7 of 15

@ summit bp

MINUTES - combined work session and regular meeting
Tuesday, December 11, 2018

IX.

XI.

WO RK SESSION (continued)

GARDINER CONTRACT

Summit DD uses Gardiner to provide routine and emergency maintenance on all HVAC
units at all facilities. The request is to renew contracts with Gardiner in 2019 for total
contract amounts not to exceed $59,992. The annual maintenance contract is in the
amount of $49,992. An additional $10,000 has also been budgeted for repairs outside
of the routine maintenance contract due to the aging HVAC systems. This includes
non-maintenance parts such as heater exchangers, ductwork, structural supports,
replacement of obsolete equipment, etc. Funds are available in the budget and the
contract with Gardiner has been recommended for approval by the November Finance
& Facilities Committee.

PRIMARY SOLUTIONS CONTRACT

Summit DD uses the Gatekeeper system provided by Primary Solutions as its main
applications for tracking people the Board supports and to manage billing activities.
The annual license cost for Gatekeeper will be $54,380, which is a 2.8% increase over
the 2018 cost. Summit DD uses OhioDD.com provided by Primary Solutions for
tracking billing and utilization of services. The annual license cost for OhioDD.com will
be $8,595, which is a 3% increase over the 2018 cost. An additional $5,000 has also
been budgeted in 2019 for customized work and training from Primary Solutions that
is beyond what is included in the licensing agreements. Mr. Briggs asked if the
licenses cover staff only. Mr. DuPlain replied the licenses are unlimited use. The
request is to renew contracts with Primary Solutions in 2019 for the total amount not
to exceed $67,975. Funds are available in the budget and the Primary Solutions
contracts have been recommended for approval by the November Finance & Facilities
Committee.

DISCOVER CONTRACTS: HATTIE LARLHAM AND HELP FOUNDATION

In March 2017, the Ohio Department of Developmental Disabilities (DODD) introduced
a new waiver rule titled Career Planning. The rule included the provision of discovery
assessment services. Discovery is a process in which a provider conducts a one on
one assessment over the course of a three-month period to determine the interests
and desires of an individual. As part of the Discovery process, people participate in a
work and social observation and a home visit. Once the assessment part of the
Discovery process is complete the provider, in conjunction with the team, creates a
Positive Personal Profile. This profile outlines the person’s interests, goals and
potential areas of support. From the profile, action steps and potential support
services are identified to assist the person in meeting their identified outcomes.
Throughout 2018, Summit DD has been building provider capacity to be able to offer
Discovery services through a series of trainings. There should be sufficient provider
capacity to offer Discovery assessment services without the need for this contract by
July 2019.



Page 8 of 15

@ summit bp

MINUTES — combined work session and regular meeting
Tuesday, December 11, 2018

XL

XII.

WO RK SESSION (continued)

DISCOVER CONTRACTS: HATTIE LARLHAM AND HELP FOUNDATION

The request is to renew contracts with Hattie Larlham and the Help Foundation for the
period January 1, 2019 through June 30, 2019, each in the amount of $30,000, for the
total contracts not to exceed $60,000. Since 2016, over 300 Discovery assessments
have been completed. Individuals, families and teams continue to be satisfied with
the process and outcomes of the Discovery process. Funds are available in the budget
and the contracts with Hattie Larlham and Help Foundation have been recommended
for approval by the November Finance & Facilities and Services & Supports
Committees.

NOVEMBER FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Revenue for November reflects reimbursements of the quarterly Medicaid
Administrative Claims (MAC) in the amount of $351,100, and the MAC portion of the
FY 2014 cost report audit settlement of $46,700. The TANF Summer Youth
Employment Program reimbursement of $177,700 was also received, as well $89,200
for quarterly Title XX reimbursement. Proceeds of $18,100 from the sale of seven
busses and $5,900 in proceeds from the two auctions at the Tallmadge Center were
also received in November. Expenditures for the month included $50,000 for the
Volunteer Guardian Program, $33,100 to ComDoc for technical support and annual
maintenance and licensing fees for software systems totaling $95,300. The November
balance in the permanent improvement fund is $3,307,563. November ended with a
balance of $1,929,141 and a fund balance of $52,476,398. The November Financial
Statements have been recommended for approval by the December Finance &
Facilities Committee.

The work session adjourned at 6:12 p.m.



Page 9 of 15

@ summit bp

MINUTES - combined work session and regular meeting
Tuesday, December 11, 2018

BOARD MEETING

The regular monthly meeting of the Summit County Developmental Disabilities Board
convened at 6:12 p.m.

L.

I1.

BOARD MEMBER CAUCUS

Mr. Quade asked relative to annual contracts, to what extent are staff being
intentional and evaluating the purpose of the contracts. He stated he is not
advocating for change but wants to ensure that each contract is being reviewed for
efficiencies and effectiveness. Mr. Trunk responded that all contracts are reviewed
several months in advance of being presented to committees and to the Board. Some
of the things reviewed are return on investment, priority of need and alternative
options. Directors have conversations with their teams about the contracts and there
are also discussions at the leadership level. Mr. Quade noted the volume of paper in
the Board packets and stated that most is for contracts. He suggested that the Topic
Summary Reports (TSR) may be all the Board needs and recommended leaving it to
the discretion of the Superintendent whether or not to include the entire contract in
Board packets. Mrs. Lee stated she would like to retain the level of detail the Board is
currently receiving. Mr. Briggs added he would also like to continue receiving full
contracts and information to review. However, when topics are reviewed at
committees, it may not be necessary to present the full contract again in Board
packets. Mrs. Gaugler suggested contracts be presented for first read but then
present TSRs only for second reads. Mr. Briggs stated that it is the purview of the
Superintendent relative to what information he wants to present to the Board.

Mr. Trunk asked the Board about receiving information electronically. Brief discussion
followed and most Board Members indicated they did not prefer to receive information
electronically.

Mr. Briggs stated that a Nominating Committee will be necessary to collect information
relative to Board Members' interest to serve in officer positions for 2019. He asked
Mr. Quade and Mrs. Ricks to serve as the Nominating Committee. Both agreed.

Mr. Briggs announced that while he will remain on the Board, he will not be a
candidate for an officer position in 2019,

PUBLIC COMMENT

Leslie Frank, a parent and Summit DD staff, mentioned there are three people
remaining at the Cuyahoga Falls Center through Friday. She was pleased to note that
all people on her caseload have found providers and all seem happy with their choice,
with the exception of one person who currently has some medical concerns. She
wished everyone a Merry Christmas and a happy 2019.



@ summit pp

MINUTES - combined work session and regular meeting
Tuesday, December 11, 2018

BOARD MEETING (continuea)

III.  APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Page 10 of 15

A. NOVEMBER 13, 2018 (combined work session and regular meeting)

RESOLUTION
No. 18-12-01

Mrs. Wilkinson moved that the Board approve the minutes of the November 13,

2018 combined work session and regular meeting, as presented in attachment
#13. The motion, seconded by Mrs. Gaugler, was unanimously approved.

IV.  BOARD ACTION ITEMS

A. FINANCE & FACILITIES COMMITTEE

1. SUMMIT DD 2019 ACTION PLAN

RESOLUTION
No. 18-12-02

Mrs. Lee moved that the Board approve the Summit DD 2019 Action
Plan, as presented in attachment #3. The motion, seconded by

Mr. Quade, was unanimously approved

2. DEPARTMENT OF JOB & FAMILY SERVICES CONTRACT FOR ONSITE
ASSISTANCE

RESOLUTION
No. 18-12-03

Mr. Quade moved that the Board approve a contract with the Summit

County Department of Job & Family Services to provide onsite assistance
for the period January 1, 2019 through December 31, 2019, in an
amount not to exceed Seventy Eight Thousand Dollars ($78,000), as
presented in attachment #4, and that the Superintendent be authorized
to sign said contract. The motion, seconded by Mrs. Lee, was
unanimously approved.



Page 11 of 15

@ summit bp

MINUTES — combined work session and regular meeting

Tuesday, December 11, 2018

BOARD MEETING (continued)

IV.  BOARD ACTION ITEMS (continued)
A. FINANCE & FACILITIES COMMITTEE (continued)

3.

NORTH EAST OHIO NETWORK (NEON) CONTRACT — FAMILY
ENGAGEMENT PROGRAM

RESOLUTION
No. 18-12-04

Mrs. Ricks moved that the Board approve a contract with North East
Ohio Network for fiscal administration of the Family Engagement
Program and for Summit DD annual dues, for the period January 1, 2019
through December 31, 2019, in an amount not to exceed Six Hundred
Thousand Dollars ($600,000), as presented in attachment #5, and that
the Superintendent be authorized to sign said contract. The motion,
seconded by Mr. Quade, was unanimously approved.

ORIANA HOUSE CONTRACT — ALTERNATIVE ENVIRONMENT PROGRAM

RESOLUTION
No. 18-12-05

Mrs. Gaugler moved that the Board approve a contract with Oriana
House for the Alternative Environment Program for the period January 1,
2019 through December 31, 2019, in an amount not to exceed Ninety

Five Thousand Dollars ($95,000), as presented in attachment #6, and

that the Superintendent be authorized to sign said contract. The
motion, seconded by Mr. Dohnal, was unanimously approved.

SUCCESS4KIDZ CONTRACT

RESOLUTION
No. 18-12-06

Mr. Dohnal moved That the Board approve a contract with Success4Kidz

to provide consultative services for the period January 1, 2019 through
December 31, 2019, in an amount not to exceed Four Hundred Fifty Six
Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($456,500), as presented in attachment
#7, and that the Superintendent be authorized to sign said contract.
The motion, seconded by Mrs. Wilkinson, was unanimously approved.




Page 12 of 15

@ summit pp

MINUTES — combined work session and regular meeting
Tuesday, December 11, 2018

BOARD M E ETI N G (continued)

IV.  BOARD ACTION ITEMS (continued)
A. FINANCE & FACILITIES COMMITTEE (continued)
6. SUMMIT COUNTY SHERIFF CONTRACT

RESOLUTION
No. 18-12-07

Mrs. Wilkinson moved that the Board approve a contract with the
Summit County Sheriff’s office to provide security and criminal
investigation services for the period January 1, 2019 through December
31, 2019, in an amount not to exceed Two Hundred Thirty Nine
Thousand Six Hundred Sixty Dollars ($239,660), as presented in
attachment #8, and that the Superintendent be authorized to sign said
contract. The motion, seconded by Mrs. Lee, was unanimously
approved.

7. GARDINER CONTRACT

RESOLUTION
No. 18-12-08

Mrs. Lee moved that the Board approve the request to enter into
contracts with Gardiner for annual maintenance and HVAC repairs for the
period January 1, 2019 through December 31, 2019, in an amount not to
exceed Fifty Nine Thousand Nine Hundred Ninety Two Dollars ($59,992
as presented in attachment #9, and that the Superintendent be
authorized to sign said contracts. The motion, seconded by Mr. Quade,
was unanimously approved.

8. PRIMARY SOLUTIONS CONTRACT

RESOLUTION
No. 18-12-09

Mr. Quade moved that the Board approve the request to enter into
contracts with Primary Solutions for annual maintenance and licensing
fees for the period January 1, 2019 through December 31, 2019, in an
amount not to exceed Sixty Seven Thousand Nine Hundred Seventy Five
Dollars ($67,975), as presented in attachment #10, and that the
Superintendent be authorized to sign said contracts. The motion,
seconded by Mrs. Wilkinson, was unanimously approved.



Page 13 of 15

@ summit bp

MINUTES — combined work session and regular meeting
Tuesday, December 11, 2018

BOARD MEEfTING_ (continued)

IV.  BOARD ACTION ITEMS (continued)

A.

FINANCE & FACILITIES COMMITTEE (continued)

9. DISCOVERY CONTRACTS: HATTIE LARLHAM AND HELP FOUNDATION

RESOLUTION
No. 18-12-10

Mrs. Ricks moved that the Board approve contracts with Hattie Larlham
and the HELP Foundation to provide Discovery assessments for the
period January 1, 2019 through June 30, 2019, for the combined total
amount not to exceed Sixty Thousand Dollars ($60,000), as presented in
attachment #11, and that the Superintendent be authorized to sign said

contracts. The motion, seconded by Mrs. Gaugler, was unanimously
approved.

10. NOVEMBER FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RESOLUTION
No. 18-12-11

Mrs. Gaugler moved that the Board approve the November Financial

Statements, as presented in attachment #12. The motion, seconded by
Mrs. Wilkinson, was unanimously approved.

V. SUPERINTENDENT'S REPORT

A.

MISCELLANEOUS UPDATES

Mr. Trunk reminded Board Members to submit their preferences to Maggi
Albright relative to 2019 committee assignments. New assignments will be
made at the January 2019 Board Meeting.

A list of potential 2019 in-service topics for the Board is being compiled. Some
of those topics include: Health and Safety, Waiting List, Budget Update,
Accreditation, Remote Supports/Assistive Technology, etc.

Mr. Trunk noted the recent OACB Annual Conference was well attended and
was a very good event with valuable content. There was one resolution around
an update to the annual dues structure at the Delegate Assembly. The
resolution passed unanimously. The overall theme of the conference was
future planning and looking forward. It is a challenge to begin rethinking some
of the long-standing assumption and the role of county boards. An explosion of
technology and technical supports is now available and boards will need to
think outside the box.



Page 14 of 15

@ summit

MINUTES - combined work session and regular meeting
Tuesday, December 11, 2018

V.

VI

BOARD MEETING (continued)

SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT (continued)

A.

MISCELLANEOUS UPDATES (continued)

The culture and community are changing and the workforce and how services
are provided need to be looked at differently. Mr. Trunk noted that Randy
Briggs, Tami Gaugler and Dave Dohnal attended the conference. There was a
very proud moment for Summit County at the conference when Dave Dohnal
was presented with the Distinguished Service Award for representing a large
county. Superintendent Trunk was honored to be able to present the award to
Mr. Dohnal. Mr. Trunk gave Mr. Dohnal a framed photo of him receiving the
award at the event. Mr. Trunk noted that Mr. Dohnal also received a letter of
congratulations from Summit County Prosecutor Sherri Bevan-Walsh for
receiving this prestigious award. Mr. Dohnal’s wife and daughter surprised him
by attending the awards ceremony. Mr. Briggs commented this was the first
time he has ever seen Mr. Dohnal at a loss for words. Mr. Dohnal said that
when he thinks about the thousands of those we support and protect, it is an
honor, and very humbling, to receive this award and there has not been
anything that has measured up to this recognition. He also stated he was
flattered that so many people from Summit County were present to support
him. He thanked everyone for their support.

Mr. Trunk mentioned that he, Lisa Kamlowsky, Mira Pozna and Holly Brugh will
be meeting with DODD Director Martin in mid-January to request several of the
state-funded I/O waivers. He said staff are able to make a strong case for this
request and he is hopeful the Director will award additional waivers to Summit

County.

Mr. Trunk announced that tonight is Lynn Sargi’s last Board Meeting; she has
accepted a position with the Cleveland Library system as the Director of Human
Resources. Ms. Sargi joined Summit DD in 2011 and brought an expertise in
staff recruitment, staff development, benefits administration, and many other
areas and has raised the bar. She has served on regional and state-wide HR
groups and he regularly hears about her contributions. She has pushed staff to
increase conversations around diversity and competencies and was a big part in
the development of the 2019 Action Plan. Ms. Sargi’s last day is January 11t
and he wished her the best of luck.

PRESIDENT’S COMMENTS

Mr. Briggs offered congratulations to the leadership team and all staff for successfully
completing a challenging year. Goals were accomplished and the bar continues to be
raised. He stated that Ms. Sargi will be missed, that she has done a fantastic job and
the Board hates to lose her. He congratulated Ms. Sargi and wished her well in future
endeavors.



Page 15 of 15

@ summit pp

MINUTES — combined work session and regular meeting
Tuesday, December 11, 2018

VI

VIL

BOARD MEETING (continued)

PRESIDENT’'S COMMENTS (continued)

Next year will be even better as exciting opportunities are presented, such as artificial
intelligence in the workplace and how that might work to support the Board’s
customers. Mr. Briggs stated he is proud to be a Board Member in Summit County
and noted that Summit County makes a big impact around the State. He commented
that Mr. Dohnal’s Distinguished Service Award is well deserved and the amount of
time and effort that Mr. Dohnal contributes to enhance the lives of people with
disabilities is second to none in the State. He is proud to have Mr. Dohnal represent
Summit DD around the State and in our community. Mr. Briggs wished everyone safe
holidays and a Happy New Year.

EXECUTIVE SESSION

RESOLUTION
No. 18-12-12

Mrs. Ricks moved that the Board enter into Executive Session in compliance with
Sunshine Laws, Ohio Revised Code 121.22, Section G, Subsection (1) to consider the
employment of a public employee. Upon reconvening, the Board may or may not
conduct additional business. The motion was seconded by Mr. Dohnal.

Roll call: Quade-yes, Wilkinson-yes, Lee-yes, Gaugler-yes, Briggs-yes, Dohnal-yes and
Ricks-yes.

The regular session of the Board Meeting adjourned at 6:36 p.m.

The Board entered Executive Session at 6:41 p.m.

The Board Meeting reconvened at 6:54 p.m.

VIIL.

ADDITIONAL ACTION ITEM
A. EMPLOYMENT CONTRACT EXTENSION — JOE ECK

RESOLUTION
No. 18-12-13

Mr. Quade moved that the Board approve a contract of employment for

Joe Eck, Director of Labor Relations & Risk Management, for the period April
21, 2019 through April 20, 2021. The motion, seconded by Mrs. Gaugler, was

unanimously approved.

There being no further business, the Board Meeting adjourned at 6:56 p.m.

Denise Ricks, Secretary



Attachment #8

BUZOd BJI

ayepdn 196png 1sSNS5Nv
uieldng ssny spasN/buiuueld aimnd — |1 AINC
ybnig AljoH Annqibya/exeiun AVH
salouaby
ybnag AjjoH 8 sweljjim Maig 13Y30 Yy3m uoneloqe|jod 1ddv
piaeq of alig ApJeS R yaesH 1IN HOUVI
Swel||IM Maig uonRepaIdy Advnyga3ad
yabus| ui (panuas suostad)
sajNUIW Q€ 9q 03 ||V Swel|[IM Maldg a3epdn piemiod Asulnor JnQ AUVNNVYL
JT9ISNOdS3d
NOILV.LIN3IS3dd NOSY3d JIdOL HLNOW
H1ODN31

ONINIVIL IDIAYIS-NI QAvO9g 6T0C




(paunuapi 304 jou) soidoy sedintes-ul aQOAa Alojepuew 6T0Z xx

ybnig AjjoH 1517 Buniepm /s1aAeM d39W303da

AIGWIAON

ABojouyda
SWeliM mMaIa 8 ubnig AlIoH | gapsissy/spioddng sjowsy d390100

d39W31d3S




